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1                 P R O C E E D I N G S

2             JUDGE JONES:  All right, we'll go ahead

3 and get started on the record.  Good morning, I'm

4 going to call hearing Docket Number for 12-0560.

5 This is entitled in part Rock Island Clean Line,

6 LLC, Petition For an Order Granting a Certificate of

7 Public Convenience and Necessity pursuant to Section

8 8-406 of the Public Utilities Act as a Transmission

9 Public Utility and to Construct, Operate and

10 Maintain an Electric Transmission Line and for other

11 relief.

12             As on the earlier days, we will start

13 off by taking the respective appearances from the

14 attorneys who are representing parties in this

15 proceeding.  In entering your appearance you need

16 not restate your contact information if you have

17 appeared at one of the earlier hearings unless any

18 data has changed, or you simply prefer to do it that

19 way.  We will start with those who are present in

20 the Springfield room, more specifically with Counsel

21 for Rock Island Clean Line, LLC.

22             MR. MacBRIDE:  Thank you, Judge.

23 Appearing on behalf of Rock Island Clean Line, LLC,

24 Owen MacBride, Diana Bowman, and Laura Chipkin at
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1 the same address as previously given.

2             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Commission

3 Staff.

4             MS. CARDONI:  On behalf of Staff

5 Witnesses for the Illinois Commerce Commission,

6 Jessica Cardoni and Christine Ericson, 160 North

7 LaSalle, Suite C-800, Chicago, Illinois, 60601.

8             MR. STALKER:  Good morning, Your Honor;

9 Clark Stalker on behalf of Commonwealth Edison

10 Company.

11             MR. BERNET:  Also on behalf of

12 Commonwealth Edison Company Richard Bernet, and my

13 contact information is previously in the record.

14             MR. PHILLIPS:  Your Honor, on behalf of

15 Illinois Landowners Alliance, Jonathan Phillips and

16 William Shay.

17             MR. DAVIS:  Chuck Davis and Laura Harmon

18 for the Illinois Farm Bureau.  Our contact

19 information is the same.

20             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

21             MR. RIPPIE:  Good morning, Your Honor

22 also on behalf of Commonwealth Edison Company, Glenn

23 Rippie and Kenyatta Beverly, Rooney, Rippie and

24 Ratnaswamy, LLC, 350 West Hubbard, Suite 600,
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1 Chicago, 60654.

2             JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

3 Are there other appearances to be entered by those

4 who are in the Springfield room?  Let the record

5 there are the not, at least at this time.

6             Are there any appearances to be entered

7 by those who are present in the Chicago room?

8             MS. CISNEROS:  Yes, Your Honor.

9 Katherine Cisneros, appearing on behalf of Rock

10 Island Clean Line, LLC.  My contact information is

11 the same.

12             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Are there

13 others?

14             MR. MUNSON:  Good morning, this is Mike

15 Munson appearing on behalf of the Building Owners

16 and Managers Association of Chicago.  My address is

17 22 West Washington, Suite 1500, Chicago, Illinois

18 60602.

19             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Are there

20 other appearances from the Chicago office?

21                   (No response.)

22             All right, let the record show there are

23 not, at least, at least as of now.

24             I believe when we finished up on Friday,
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1 there was a witness schedule for, for today, and for

2 that matter the next two days.  Are there any

3 changes in that witness schedule?

4             MR. MacBRIDE:  One change that I can

5 speak to, Judge.  Rock Island will not be cross

6 examining ILA witness Mr. Rosengren.  We have

7 reached an agreement with ILA's counsel to submit an

8 exhibit in lieu of cross, and that exhibit, in fact,

9 was filed on eDocket on the 9th, I believe, as Rock

10 Island Cross Exhibit Rosengren 1, so we won't be

11 crossing Mr. Rosengren, at the appropriate time we

12 would offer the exhibit I just identified into the

13 record.

14             JUDGE JONES:  Okay, thank you.  Are

15 there any other changes in that schedule, at least

16 as applies to today?

17             MR. MacBRIDE:  The only -- I just

18 observe the order here isn't necessarily intended to

19 be significant, although except for the staff

20 witnesses who asked to be in the afternoon in the

21 parties.  Since Mr. Cornicelli is present, if the

22 parties wish to go with him first over the video

23 hook-up, that would be fine.

24             MR. MUNSON:  Your Honor, Mr. Cornicelli
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1 is present in Chicago.

2             JUDGE JONES:  Could you identify

3 yourself, please?

4             MR. MUNSON:  Sorry, this is Michael

5 Munson representing BOMA.  Mr. Cornicelli is in the

6 Chicago office present.

7             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  And since

8 there are quite a few attorneys who will be

9 participating today, just, as sort of the first time

10 you speak after the entry of appearances, if you

11 could just identify yourself for the benefit of our

12 court reporter, it would be appreciated.

13             Anything else of a preliminary nature

14 then before we proceed with the, with the witnesses?

15             MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honor, it's Glenn

16 Rippie for comment, there are some amendments

17 scheduled for tomorrow and the next day, which we

18 have discussed with Mr. MacBride.  If you prefer, we

19 can go through them tomorrow.  They're in large part

20 reductions of time.

21             MR. MacBRIDE:  Judge, I, Mr. Rippie did

22 discuss those with me.  I took them to just be minor

23 estimates in his cross time estimates, so I didn't

24 really think it would be necessary to bring them up,
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1 particularly given that we haven't necessarily

2 closely adhered to these estimates so far.

3             JUDGE JONES:  Well, I think it would

4 still help, I think it's still helpful to have the,

5 the most current estimates that there are, so at

6 some point today, I don't have a problem with that

7 being now, we'll probably be, it will probably be

8 useful to get those, get those estimates noted.

9             MR. RIPPIE:  Your Honor, it's my belief

10 that the cross examination of Mr. Galli tomorrow

11 will probably be closer to half an hour than 45

12 minutes, and if, there is some chance that the cross

13 examination of Mr. Berry will be closer to two hours

14 than an hour and 45.  But I think, I can tell you

15 with almost complete certainty that Mr. Galli will

16 be a half hour.

17             JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

18             Anything else with respect to the above

19 or similar matters?

20             MS. CISNEROS:  I didn't hear the revised

21 time estimate, Your Honor.

22             JUDGE JONES:  Do you want Mr. Rippie to

23 walk up to the microphone from the back of the room

24 and give you those?
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1             MR. RIPPIE:  They're for tomorrow, we

2 can also do it during the break.

3             MR. BERNET:  This is Richard Bernet.  I

4 think what Mr. Rippie said is the cross examination

5 of Mr. Galli would be 30 minutes instead of 45, and

6 the cross examination of Mr. Berry would likely be

7 120 minutes rather than 105.

8             MS. CISNEROS:  Thank you.

9             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Okay.

10 Anything else with regard to that?  All right.

11                   (No response.)

12             Let the record show there is not.  If

13 anyone is having any trouble hearing anybody else,

14 just let us know, and we will maybe move some

15 individuals around or equipment around so that

16 everybody can hear what everybody else has to say.

17             MS. CISNEROS:  Thank you.

18             JUDGE JONES:  I think it was mentioned a

19 moment ago that the first witness today then may be

20 the BOMA witness.  Is that right, Mr. Munson?

21             MR. MUNSON:  Yes, Mr. Cornicelli is

22 present.  Can you see him on your screen?

23             JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir, thank you.  All

24 right.  Do you wish to call that witness at this



541

1 time?

2             MR. MUNSON:  Yes, BOMA Chicago calls

3 Michael Cornicelli.

4             JUDGE JONES:  Sir, please stand and

5 raise your right hand and be sworn as a witness.

6                 MICHAEL CORNICELLI,

7 of lawful age, having been first duly sworn to

8 testify the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

9 the truth in the case aforesaid, deposes and says in

10 reply to oral interrogatories propounded as follows,

11 to-wit:

12                     EXAMINATION

13 QUESTIONS BY MR. MUNSON

14        Q.   Would you please state and spell your

15 name, and provide your business address for the

16 record, Mr. Cornicelli?

17        A.   My name is Michael Cornicelli, C-O-R --

18             JUDGE JONES:  We're having a lot of

19 trouble hearing you.

20             THE WITNESS:  Okay, sorry.  My name is

21 Michael Cornicelli, C-O-R-N-I-C-E-L-L-I.  I'm the

22 Executive Vice-president of the Building Owners and

23 Managers Association of Chicago, and our business

24 address is 115 South LaSalle Street, Suite 2800,
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1 Chicago, Illinois, 60606.

2        Q.   And on whose behalf are you testifying?

3        A.   On behalf of the Building Owners and

4 Managers Association of Chicago, BOMA.

5        Q.   Now in front of you you have what's been

6 marked for purposes of identification as BOMA

7 Chicago Exhibit 1.0 and 1.1.  I ask is this your

8 prefile testimony and exhibits submitted in this

9 proceeding?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   Is it correct that the testimony

12 contains six pages plus a cover page and one page of

13 a biography?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Was this testimony prepared by you or

16 under your direction and supervision?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   Do you have any corrections or

19 modifications to make to this testimony at this

20 time?

21        A.   No.

22        Q.   If I were to ask you these same

23 questions, would your responses be the same?

24        A.   Yes.
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1             MR. MUNSON:  At this time, Judge, I'd

2 move for admission of BOMA Chicago Exhibits 1.0 and

3 1.1 into the record and tender Mr. Cornicelli for

4 cross examination.

5             JUDGE JONES:  Are there any responses to

6 that motion?

7                   (No response.)

8             Let the record show there are not.  The,

9 those two evidentiary items are admitted in the

10 evidentiary record, BOMA Exhibit 1.0 and 1.1, both

11 filed on June 25, 2013.  They are admitted into the

12 evidentiary record as they appear under eDocket on

13 that filing date.

14               (BOMA Exhibits 1.0 and 1.1

15                were admitted into evidence

16                at this time.)

17             All right, I believe there are counsel

18 for two parties who have some questions for this

19 witness.  Who wants to lead off?

20             MR. STALKER:  I will, Your Honor.

21                     EXAMINATION

22 QUESTIONS BY MR. STALKER

23        Q.   Good morning, Mr. Cornicelli, my name is

24 Clark Stalker on behalf of Commonwealth Edison
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1 Company.

2        A.   Good morning.

3        Q.   I just have a few questions for you this

4 morning.  If any of my questions, however, are

5 unclear, please let me know, and I'll do my best to

6 clarify them for you.  And I want to at least reach

7 a preliminary agreement that when I use the word

8 "Line" or "Project," I want you to understand that I

9 am referring to the Rock Island Transmission Line

10 and Project.  Do you understand that?

11        A.   Yes, I do.

12        Q.   And like you, I may occasionally use the

13 acronym BOMA, B-O-M-A.  And obviously we understand

14 what that refers to.

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   Great.  Now you have never testified

17 before, is that right?

18        A.   That's correct.

19        Q.   Have you ever before offered your

20 support of a Merchant Transmission Line Project?

21        A.   No.

22        Q.   How is it that you came to offer your

23 support for the Rock Island Clean Line Project here?

24        A.   As a policy matter, my organization
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1 supports increased access to generation sources and

2 market-competitive market-based opportunities to

3 access energy for commercial customers in the state

4 of Illinois.  And because of those policy issues and

5 concerns, those motivations led us to support this

6 filing in this project.

7        Q.   I guess I was being a little more, a

8 little more literal as to, you know, when were you

9 approached, and by whom were you approached to offer

10 your support for this project?

11        A.   I think that the date on which I was

12 approached I can't recall I'm afraid.  The matter

13 was brought to our attention by our counsel, Mr.

14 Munson.  He and I discussed the project, we talked

15 with our Energy and Sustainability Committee and our

16 officers and determined that this was a, a project

17 that we should support as an organization.  Again, I

18 cannot recall when that, those conversations

19 occurred or when that analysis occurred.

20        Q.   Okay.  Now to be clear, your support of

21 the Rock Island Clean Line Project is conditional,

22 is it not?

23        A.   It is, yes.

24        Q.   And it's conditional to the extent the
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1 project is market-based, is that right?

2        A.   Yes.

3        Q.   What is your understanding of, of the

4 term market-based?

5        A.   My understanding is that the pricing for

6 the use of this facility would be borne by either

7 customers who utilize it, or sellers of electricity

8 who utilize it.  That it would not be funded or

9 subsidized in any way by an allocation over the

10 entire customer class.

11        Q.   And I believe you testified that your

12 support is conditional to the extent it does not

13 increase costs to BOMA members and other similarly

14 situated end use customers, is that right?

15        A.   That is correct, yes.

16        Q.   Now if the project fails either of the

17 two conditions that you've testified to, BOMA will

18 not support the project any longer, is that right?

19        A.   That's correct, but it would also -- our

20 determination to do that I think would depend upon

21 the extent to which the project no longer met those

22 criteria.  So if, for example, there was a small

23 charge to the customers, we may consider continuing

24 our support.  We think that there are other
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1 advantages to this project, such as increased

2 reliability of the system, and reasons to support it

3 perhaps in context apart from the lack of any

4 expense being passed along to our customer base.  So

5 it is a question of degree, I believe.

6        Q.   And to that extent you referred to

7 perhaps being agreeable to a small cost to

8 customers.  How are you defining a small cost to an

9 end use customer?

10        A.   I really am not able to answer that,

11 Mr. Stalker, I'd have to, you know, look at the

12 facts and see what those numbers were, understand

13 the impact on our membership and to our advisors

14 before I could reach a conclusion on that.

15        Q.   And I believe you've now testified here

16 this morning to, you know, some concerns about the

17 impact of the project on reliability.  Does your

18 prefile testimony discuss reliability concerns or

19 issues?

20        A.   It doesn't discuss concerns, I think it

21 does allude to the fact that we believe that this

22 project would increase the potential system

23 reliability.

24        Q.   And --
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1        A.   We have not got into depth into why, or

2 how, or to what extent.

3        Q.   So if I were to ask you how the project

4 might improve or enhance reliability, you wouldn't

5 be able to discuss that in any sort of substantive

6 detail?

7        A.   That's correct.  Not in a technical way,

8 correct.

9        Q.   Now is it your understanding that Clean

10 Line will develop the project with private

11 financing?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   And that generator customers who connect

14 to the line will pay the $2 billion to construct the

15 line?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   To the extent that Clean Line does not

18 attract sufficient support to pay for the cost of

19 the line, what assurances has BOMA received that

20 costs will not be shifted to end use customers?

21        A.   None.

22        Q.   To your knowledge, has Clean Line

23 unconditionally guaranteed not to seek to recover

24 any costs of the project or its operation from end
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1 use customers?

2        A.   I really have no knowledge.  I have no

3 recollection as to whether they have made that

4 commitment or not.

5        Q.   Do you have any understanding as to

6 whether Clean Line witness Mr. Skelly has testified

7 that traditional cost allocation methods remain a

8 possibility?

9        A.   Yes, I recall that.

10        Q.   Thank you, Mr. Cornicelli, I have

11 nothing further.

12             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you Mr. Stalker.

13 Mr. Davis, do you have some questions of this

14 witness?

15             MR. DAVIS:  I do not; I believe the

16 Landowners Association may.

17             MR. PHILLIPS:  Yes, Your Honor.

18                     EXAMINATION

19 QUESTIONS BY MR. PHILLIPS

20        Q.   This is Jonathan Phillips, Mr.

21 Cornicelli, and I'm an attorney for the Illinois

22 Landowners Alliance, and Mr. Stalker covered,

23 frankly, most of the things I'm probably going to go

24 over, so I just have a couple of questions.
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1             The same things that you and Mr. Stalker

2 agreed on regarding BOMA and the Line and

3 everything, does that work for us, too?

4        A.   Yes, sir.

5        Q.   Okay.  In your testimony you claim that

6 BOMA supports this project to the extent that it

7 enhances competition, lowers cost to BOMA members,

8 increases reliability, and does not increase the

9 costs to your members; is that correct?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   So just briefly, if the project actually

12 decreased reliability, would BOMA no longer support

13 this project?

14        A.   I think I would need a little more

15 analysis of the extent of the decrease.  It would

16 certainly be a factor militating against our support

17 for the project.

18        Q.   Is it fair to say that it would be a

19 question of degree then?

20        A.   Yes, sir.

21        Q.   Okay.  And I imagine we'll have a

22 similar answer, but what if the project did decrease

23 reliability, but actually was advantageous

24 economically to your clients as far as lowering
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1 costs?

2        A.   Again, there -- it would be a question

3 of degree, to what extent did it decrease

4 reliability, and to what extent was it decreasing

5 the costs.

6        Q.   Okay.  Well, thank you very much, Mr.

7 Cornicelli; like I said, Mr. Stalker covered most of

8 my stuff, and I thank you for your time.

9        A.   Thank you.

10             MR. PHILLIPS:  No further questions,

11 Your Honor.

12             JUDGE JONES:  Is there any redirect?

13             MR. MUNSON:  No redirect, Your Honor.

14             JUDGE JONES:  That concludes the

15 questions of this witness.  Thank you, sir.

16             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

17             JUDGE JONES:  The witness list appears

18 to show a Rock Island witness as the next witness,

19 is that the plan?

20             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes.  So we'd call David

21 Loomis as our next witness.

22             JUDGE JONES:  Sir, please remain

23 standing and be sworn as a witness.

24                    DAVID LOOMIS,
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1 of lawful age, having been first duly sworn to

2 testify the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

3 the truth in the case aforesaid, deposes and says in

4 reply to oral interrogatories propounded as follows,

5 to-wit:

6                     EXAMINATION

7 QUESTIONS BY MR. MacBRIDE

8        Q.   Sir, would you please state your name

9 and business address for the record?

10        A.   My name is David Loomis, and my business

11 address is 2705 Kolby Court, Bloomington, Illinois,

12 61704.

13        Q.   Who is your employer, and what is your

14 present position?

15        A.   I am Principal of Strategic Economic

16 Research, LLC; I'm also Professor of Economics at

17 Illinois State University.  I also am a Director of

18 the Center for Renewable Energy at Illinois State

19 University, and Executive Director of the Institute

20 For Regulatory Policies at ISU.

21        Q.   Thank you.  Have you prepared certain

22 testimony and exhibits that you wish to offer in

23 this proceeding?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   And do you understand that your

2 testimony and exhibits have previously been filed

3 through the Commission's eDocket System?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   You have before you a document that is

6 titled:  Direct Testimony of David G. Loomis on

7 behalf of Rock Island Clean Line, LLC, that is

8 identified as Rock Island Exhibit 5.0?

9        A.   Yes.

10             JUDGE JONES:  One moment.  Pardon the

11 interruption.

12        Q   (By Mr. MacBride) Does Rock Island

13 Exhibit 5.0 consist of a cover page followed by a

14 Table of Contents and ten pages of written questions

15 an answers?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   Is Rock Island Exhibit 5.0 the prepared

18 direct testimony you wish to offer in this

19 proceeding?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Do you have any corrections or changes

22 to make to Rock Island Exhibit 5.0?

23        A.   No.

24        Q.   If I were to ask you the questions at
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1 this hearing today that are shown on Rock Island

2 Exhibit 5.0, would you give the same answers?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   Do you also have before you documents

5 that have been marked for identification as Rock

6 Island Exhibits 5.1 and 5.2?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   Now are these exhibits the exhibits to

9 your direct testimony?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   Were these exhibits prepared under your

12 supervision and direction?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   Do you have any corrections or changes

15 to make to either of those two exhibits?

16        A.   No.

17        Q.   Are the contents of those two exhibits

18 true and accurate, to the best of your knowledge and

19 belief?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Next do you also have before you a

22 document that is entitled Rebuttal Testimony of

23 Dr. David G. Loomis on behalf of Rock Island Clean

24 Line, LLC, which is identified as Rock Island
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1 Exhibit 5.3?

2        A.   Yes, I do.

3        Q.   And Rock Island 5.3 consists of a Cover

4 Page and a Table of Contents followed by nine pages

5 of questions and answers, is that correct?

6             Sorry, there's no Table of Contents.

7        A.   No Table of Contents; yes, Cover Page

8 and nine pages.

9        Q.   Thank you.  Is Rock Island Exhibit 5.3

10 the Rebuttal Testimony you wish to offer in this

11 proceeding?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   Do you have any corrections or changes

14 to make to Exhibit 5.3?

15        A.   No.

16        Q.   If I were to ask you at this hearing the

17 questions shown on Rock Island Exhibit 5.3, would

18 your answers be the same?

19        A.   Yes.

20             MR. MacBRIDE:  We offer the exhibits

21 identified by Dr. Loomis into the record and offer

22 Dr. Loomis for cross examination.

23             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Are there any

24 responses to that motion?
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1             MR. STALKER:  None.

2             JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show there

3 are not.  At this time let the record show that the

4 evidentiary items sponsored by Dr. Loomis are

5 admitted into the evidentiary record, more

6 specifically, 5.0, 5.1 and 5.2 filed on October 10,

7 2012, and 5.3 filed on eDocket on August 20, 2013,

8 these are all admitted as they appear on eDocket on

9 those file dates.

10               (Rock Island Exhibits 5.0, 5.1, 5.2

11                and 5.3 were admitted into evidence

12                at this time.)

13             JUDGE JONES:  It appears that Counsel

14 for two parties have cross examination questions for

15 this witness.  Who wants to start.

16             MR. STALKER:  I'll proceed, Your Honor.

17                     EXAMINATION

18 QUESTIONS BY MR. STALKER

19        Q.   Good morning, Dr. Loomis.

20        A.   Good morning.

21        Q.   My name is Clark Stalker on behalf of

22 Commonwealth Edison, I just have a few questions for

23 you this morning.  If I ask a question, however,

24 that is not clear to you, please let me know, and
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1 I'll do my best to clarify it.

2             Secondly, when I use the terms "line" or

3 "project," will you understand that I'm referring to

4 the Rock Island Transmission Line or Project at

5 issue in this case?

6        A.   (Nods affirmatively.)

7        Q.   You are a Professor of Economics at

8 Illinois State University, is that right?

9        A.   That's correct.

10        Q.   And you're also a principal in a

11 consulting firm, is that correct?

12        A.   Correct.

13        Q.   What percentage of your time is spent on

14 consulting versus teaching at the university?

15        A.   Currently I'm, one day a week is allowed

16 for consulting; I usually don't fill that up in

17 terms of consulting requests.

18        Q.   Okay.  In terms of your prior consulting

19 engagements, what percentage of your clients have

20 been, you know, energy companies versus let's say

21 public entities?

22        A.   In terms of the consulting business --

23        Q.   Right.

24        A.   -- I've done energy studies, as well as
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1 telecommunications studies.  I think all of those

2 have been for private companies, I don't believe any

3 have been for public entities.

4        Q.   Have you ever testified before this

5 Commission before?

6        A.   No.

7        Q.   Which of the Clean Line entities

8 retained you for this matter?

9        A.   Rock Island Clean Line, LLC, Clean Line

10 Energy Partners was the first contact that I had to,

11 to do the study.

12        Q.   Okay.  And when was that, do you recall?

13        A.   It was in the Fall of 2010.

14        Q.   Okay.  Now you conducted a study of the

15 economic impact of the proposed Rock Island Project

16 on the Illinois economy, is that right?

17        A.   That's correct.

18        Q.   And there were two parts to your study.

19 There was an economic impact of the transmission

20 line, is that correct?

21        A.   Correct.

22        Q.   And an Economic Impact Analysis of the

23 wind farms that will be built if the transmission

24 line is approved, is that right?
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1        A.   That's correct.

2        Q.   And in connection with that, you looked

3 at the impact of construction and ongoing operations

4 and maintenance, is that right?

5        A.   Correct.

6        Q.   Okay.  Now you're aware that the wind

7 farms are proposed to be built in Iowa, is that

8 right?

9        A.   Correct.

10        Q.   And they're not --

11        A.   Well --

12        Q.   -- they're not to be built in Illinois?

13        A.   That's correct.  Of the 4000 megawatts

14 of wind farms, 2500 would assume to be built in

15 Iowa, and the others in surrounding states, none of

16 which would be built in Illinois.

17        Q.   Okay.  Speaking of that, the 4000

18 megawatts, where, where did you get that sort of

19 target objective from?

20        A.   That came from, Clean Line provided that

21 estimate of the number of wind farms that would be

22 built associated with its transmission line.

23        Q.   Okay.  And I guess to follow-up on that,

24 the wind farms will, will operate in and be
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1 maintained in Iowa, and potentially those other --

2 surrounding states, is that right?

3        A.   Correct.

4        Q.   They will not operate or be maintained

5 in the state of Illinois.

6        A.   They -- that is right, they will not be.

7        Q.   Thank you.  Now you received the inputs

8 for your study from Clean Line, is that right?

9        A.   Yes.  In terms of the number of

10 megawatts of wind farms and the cost of the

11 transmission line.

12        Q.   How about things like towers and wire,

13 those sort of data inputs?  Did those come from

14 Clean Line, as well?

15        A.   The breakdown of the costs and how much

16 would be for towers and how much would be for wires

17 came from Clean Line.

18        Q.   Okay.  Did you independently verify the

19 accuracy of the data you were receiving from Clean

20 Line?

21        A.   The data that I received was in the

22 range of reasonableness of what I understood

23 transmission costs to be, but I did not do an

24 extensive search to independently verify those
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1 costs.

2        Q.   Now you conclude that the construction

3 of the project will create demand for approximately

4 1,450 construction jobs per year for three years, is

5 that right?

6        A.   Correct.

7        Q.   Now these are temporary jobs, aren't

8 they?

9        A.   Except for those three years, it's only

10 during that three-year construction --

11        Q.   Right.

12        A.   -- phase that those jobs would be --

13        Q.   So just sort of --

14        A.   -- in effect.

15        Q.   I'm sorry.  By definition, when the

16 project is completed, those construction jobs go

17 away.

18        A.   Those jobs would be only during that

19 three-year period, correct.

20        Q.   Okay.  Now your study categorizes O and

21 M costs as economic benefits, is that right?

22        A.   That's correct.

23        Q.   And is it your understanding that Staff

24 Witness Zuraski took issue with that?
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1        A.   Yes, he took issue with a number of the

2 costs that, including O and M costs.

3        Q.   Now you concluded that the economic

4 impact of the O and M costs of the proposed

5 transmission line would be 80 jobs, and

6 approximately $4.6 million of labor income annually,

7 is that right?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   And again, the majority of those jobs

10 and the associated income will be in Iowa, is that

11 right?

12        A.   There, there would be a much greater

13 impact in Iowa than it would be in Illinois.

14        Q.   Okay, and again, I think we've agreed

15 that these are temporary jobs in any event, right?

16        A.   The construction jobs are temporary

17 jobs, the operations and maintenance jobs, however,

18 are ongoing employment.

19        Q.   So, so some of those 80 jobs will be

20 ongoing.

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   Now by design your study doesn't include

23 any analysis of project costs, is that right?

24        A.   That's correct.
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1        Q.   And your testimony never mentions the

2 cost to construct the line, does it?

3        A.   It does mention the cost to, to

4 construct --

5        Q.   Okay.

6        A.   -- the line.

7        Q.   And what is your understanding of the

8 total cost to construct the line?

9        A.   In, in Exhibit 5.2, Table 1, we have a

10 breakdown of the construction expenditures in Table

11 1 where we break out the amount by component, by

12 towers, wire, converters, construction,

13 right-of-way, and we, we have there the total $1.5

14 billion is the total construction cost for the

15 transmission line.

16        Q.   Okay.  Now you didn't analyze benefits

17 net of the cost to construct the line, though, did

18 you?

19        A.   No, one of the things that we said in

20 our study up front on, on Page 8 of Exhibit 5.2 was

21 there's a list of the limitations of the study.

22        Q.   Right.

23        A.   And in Bullet Point 1 it said that

24 specifically this analysis does not include the net
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1 effects of the proposed project, this is the gross

2 economic impacts rather than net effects.  Which

3 is --

4        Q.   Okay.

5        A.   -- the standard practice of doing these

6 type of economic impact analyses.

7        Q.   Now ultimately there will be costs borne

8 by generators, right?

9        A.   My understanding is that this would be a

10 merchant plant and those wind developers would be

11 customers --

12        Q.   Right.

13        A.   -- of Clean Line.

14        Q.   And customers of the line will assume

15 certain costs, is that right?

16        A.   Yeah.

17        Q.   Now it's, it's true, is it not, that all

18 of the economic impact dollar values are stated in

19 terms of 2010 dollars, is that correct?

20        A.   Yes, that's correct.

21        Q.   In fact, I believe you use the IMPLAN

22 model, and that's I-M-P-L-A-N, all caps, using 2009

23 data for Iowa and Illinois, is that right?

24        A.   We, we use the latest available IMPLAN
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1 multipliers that were available at the time that we

2 did the study, and those were 2009 multipliers.

3        Q.   Okay.  And I believe the JEDI, J-E-D-I,

4 all caps, model, you also used 2009 data, is that

5 right?

6        A.   The, the JEDI model I don't believe

7 has -- is specific in terms of the, whether it's

8 2009 data.  That is provided by the National Energy

9 Labs, and, but it was the latest version of that

10 JEDI model that was available at the time that we

11 did the study.

12        Q.   Okay.  Are you -- is it your

13 understanding or belief that the 2009 data is the

14 same as 2012 or 2013 data?

15        A.   What, what specific data are you

16 referring to?

17        Q.   Well, the data that you relied on that

18 was used in the IMPLAN and JEDI models?

19        A.   So the underlying input/output --

20        Q.   Correct.

21        A.   -- data --

22        Q.   Correct.

23        A.   -- rather than the project costs and so

24 forth.
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1             The, so the 2009 IMPLAN data was the

2 most recent that was available at the time that we

3 engaged in the study in 2000 -- or started the study

4 in 2010.  There's always a lag in, when they publish

5 those statistics, the IMPLAN group that publishes

6 those takes the government statistics each year and

7 produces new input/output tables, and so they,

8 actually right now the most current multipliers are,

9 that are available are 2011.  So you can see that

10 there's a, their a lag involved that, between the

11 time that the new multipliers become available.  I

12 think that they are due to have a 2012 multipliers

13 available --

14        Q.   Right.

15        A.   -- in the next few weeks here, towards

16 end of the year.

17        Q.   So if I understood you correctly, there

18 is now 2011 data that, if you had your druthers, you

19 would rather use than the 2010 or 2009 data that you

20 did use?

21        A.   The 2011 data has become available since

22 we've done the, done the study.

23        Q.   Right.  Is the data that you did use,

24 the 2009 and 2010 data, is that as reliable as data



567

1 that we could have access to today?

2        A.   They constantly update that based on the

3 new statistics, so at the time that the study was

4 done, we used the most reliable information that was

5 done, but I have not rerun the study with, with the

6 new multipliers to see what effect that would have.

7        Q.   So the study that we have in the record

8 today is a 2010 study.

9        A.   Correct.

10        Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that converter

11 station equipment is a key component of this

12 project.

13        A.   Define what you mean by a key component.

14        Q.   Well, I'm looking at Page 12, if I could

15 direct your attention to Page 12 of your study,

16 which I believe is Exhibit 5.2., and I see that in

17 your chart, this is Table 1, I'm sorry, converters

18 represent 22 percent of total expenditures?

19        A.   That's correct.

20        Q.   So I guess that was my interpretation or

21 my -- I interpreted that to mean a key component.

22 Pretty significant, wouldn't you say?  22 percent?

23        A.   22 percent of the cost does come from,

24 come from the converters.
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1        Q.   Okay.  Now the converter station

2 equipment will not be built in Illinois, is that

3 right?

4        A.   Currently, as was noted in that, in that

5 table, we only included in our analysis the

6 construction costs, because converters will be

7 purchased overseas, so we excluded the 22 percent,

8 the cost of the actual converters, or the $325

9 million from the analysis.

10        Q.   Got it.  So that there is no economic

11 impact or benefit to Illinois of these converters,

12 then, is that correct?  These are going to be

13 purchased not even in the United States, but

14 overseas.

15        A.   The purchase of the equipment, but we

16 did include the installation costs or construction

17 costs of actually, you know, installing those

18 converters would be included, but the, but that's,

19 that's included as, as a $175 million item, or 12

20 percent of the total expenditure, and then the

21 converters, the actual equipment that would be

22 purchased from overseas would be $325 million, and

23 that was not included in the analysis -- in the

24 Economic Impact Analysis.
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1        Q.   Okay.  Dr. Loomis, are you familiar with

2 Section 8-406 of the Illinois Public Utility Act?

3        A.   No, I'm not.

4        Q.   You are testifying in support of Rock

5 Island Clean Line's request to be issued a

6 Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity

7 Pursuant to Section 8-406?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   Okay.  But you're not familiar with that

10 section?

11        A.   I'm not familiar with the stipulations

12 of that section, no.

13        Q.   Okay.  So I assume you're not aware then

14 that Rock Island must convince the Illinois Commerce

15 Commission that it has satisfied certain conditions

16 or requirements under that section of the Act?

17        A.   No, I was retained by Clean Line to, to

18 do an Economic Impact Analysis and look at what that

19 was going to do in terms of, of jobs, earnings, and

20 output, and report that in this filing.

21        Q.   Okay.  So your, your Economic Impact

22 Study does not address any sort of conditions or

23 requirements set forth in Section 8-406 of the Act

24 then.
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1             MR. MacBRIDE:  Objection, the witness

2 has testified he's not familiar with the section, so

3 he can't know whether or not it addresses any

4 requirements of the section.  Clearly from his

5 testimony he wasn't asked to discuss the statute.

6             JUDGE JONES:  Response?

7             MR. STALKER:  Well, you know, I believe,

8 Your Honor, that the witness answered no before his

9 counsel was able to object, but in any event, I

10 think it is clear that -- well, I'll leave it at

11 that.

12             JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Reporter, could you

13 read the answer back, if there was one?

14             THE REPORTER:  Yes, I did not hear an

15 answer.  I have the question, and then the

16 objection.

17             JUDGE JONES:  Would you read the

18 question back, please?

19             THE REPORTER:  QUESTION:  "So your

20 Economic Impact Study does not address any sort of

21 conditions or requirements set forth in Section

22 8-406 of the Act then?"

23             Objection by Mr. MacBride.

24             JUDGE JONES:  There's some confusion
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1 here about whether the witness actually answered,

2 answered or started to answer that question.  I

3 think he may have, but it did not get entered into

4 what will be the transcript, so I don't really know

5 where that leaves us, this is kind of a unique

6 situation, normally the witnesses need to be given a

7 chance to finish their answers before objections

8 come in; however, when it's one's own witness,

9 that's a little different, that's a little different

10 story.

11             MR. STALKER:  Your Honor, would it help

12 if I just withdrew the question and we could move

13 on?

14             JUDGE JONES:  Yes, if you want to ask a

15 different question, I think that would simplify

16 things a little bit, given the unusual circumstances

17 there.

18             MR. STALKER:  Thank you.

19        Q   (By Mr. Stalker) Dr. Loomis, I think we

20 can agree that your testimony does not address any

21 sort of conditions or requirements that may be set

22 forth in Section 8-406 of the Public Utility Act; is

23 that correct?

24             MR. MacBRIDE:  And the same objection I
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1 stated earlier.  If Counsel wants to ask if the

2 testimony specifically refers to any requirements of

3 the statute, I wouldn't object to that, but whether

4 it addresses requirements of the statute I think is

5 a legal matter for the parties to argue in their

6 briefs.  And as I indicated, the witness is -- or as

7 the witness has indicated, he's not familiar with

8 the statute, and he wasn't asked to discuss the

9 statute in the study.

10             JUDGE JONES:  Response?

11             MR. STALKER:  I'll reask the question,

12 Your Honor.

13        Q   (By Mr. Stalker) Dr. Loomis, at Page 2 of

14 your direct testimony, Line 34, you state that:  "I

15 am testifying in support of the request of Rock

16 Island Clean Line, LLC, to be issued a Certificate

17 of Public Convenience and Necessity Pursuant To

18 Section 8-406 of the Illinois Public Utility Act to

19 construct operate and maintain the Rock Island Clean

20 Line Transmission Project."  And it goes on from

21 there.

22             What is your understanding of your

23 testimony there with regard to Rock Island's request

24 pursuant to Section 8-406?



573

1             THE WITNESS:  Again, I was retained as,

2 if you look at Line 40:  "Specifically I will

3 address the economic impact of the proposed Rock

4 Island Project on the Illinois economy."

5             So I was doing the study to look at

6 jobs, earnings and total economic output on the

7 Illinois economy.

8        Q.   Okay.  So you do not then refer in your

9 study to any sort of conditions or requirements that

10 Rock Island Clean Line would need to satisfy under

11 Section 8-406, right?

12        A.   No, I do not look at any specific.

13        Q.   Dr. Loomis, I believe you referred a few

14 minutes ago to Page 8 of your study in which you

15 delineate six limitations of the study.  Do you

16 recall that testimony?

17             That would be Rock Island Exhibit 5.2,

18 Page 8.

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   And I believe at that point you

21 delineate six limitations of your study, is that

22 right?

23        A.   That's right.

24        Q.   Now considering your previous
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1 engagements for other energy companies, do all of

2 your economic impact studies have this number of

3 limitations?

4        A.   I -- it varies on the type of the, of

5 the project, but, you know, in terms of an Economic

6 Impact Analysis that's going to be derived, those

7 are pretty standard limitations of an Economic

8 Impact Analysis.

9        Q.   Did this specific project create

10 additional limitations for your study?

11        A.   No.

12        Q.   Thank you, Dr. Loomis, I have nothing

13 further.

14             JUDGE JONES:  Mr. Davis, do you still

15 have questions for this witness?

16             MR. DAVIS:  Yes, Your Honor, just a few.

17                     EXAMINATION

18 QUESTIONS BY MR. DAVIS

19        Q.   Dr. Loomis, my name is Chuck Davis, I'm

20 an attorney for the Illinois Farm Bureau, and I just

21 have a couple of questions.  Counsel covered most of

22 what I had here.

23             The study that's attached to your

24 testimony, isn't it true that it does not measure
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1 the economic impact of the farmland taken out of

2 production as a result of the construction of the

3 transmission line?

4        A.   We include land owner payments that

5 were, that would be made to those land owners for

6 easement, right-of-way, structures are in there, and

7 my understanding of that cost was that the land

8 owners would be paid the fair market value of their

9 land, but that they could still farm it.

10        Q.   And these assumptions that you speak of,

11 these were given to you by Rock Island Clean Line,

12 is that correct?

13        A.   Rock Island Clean Line gave me the, the

14 land owner payments of $50 million that we used in

15 the model.

16        Q.   And your assumption that the farmland

17 will continue to be farmed, you made that statement,

18 that assumption was given to you by Rock Island

19 also.

20        A.   That's correct.

21        Q.   So the, the concept of any loss of

22 income to a farmer because of any farmland taken out

23 of production was not addressed in your study then,

24 is that correct?
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1        A.   The, the only impacts that we included

2 in there were those that would -- were payments for

3 right-of-way and easement that would be those land

4 owner payments, we specifically did not include

5 those payments that would be due to structures and

6 crop damage, those types of payments, which would be

7 compensation of, and a transfer of income from one

8 party to another.  Those were not, you know, counted

9 as part of the study.

10        Q.   In your study you also did not include

11 any increased expenses that might be experienced by

12 a farmer in the operation of their farm because of

13 this transmission line, is that correct?

14        A.   No, we did not include that.

15        Q.   Is it correct that you did not address

16 in your study the concept that less wind farms could

17 be built in the state of Illinois in the future

18 because of the new wind farms built in the resource

19 area, is that correct?

20        A.   We, we didn't look at any of the impacts

21 of, that this project being built would cause on any

22 generator, wind farms or otherwise, in the Illinois

23 market as a part of this study.

24        Q.   Thank you.  Nothing further.
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1             JUDGE JONES:  Mr. MacBride, any

2 redirect?

3             MR. MacBRIDE:  Can we take a five-minute

4 break?

5             JUDGE JONES:  It's a little early, but

6 we can take a break for five minutes.

7             MR. MacBRIDE:  Thank you.

8             JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Mr.

9 MacBride, do you have any redirect?

10             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes, Judge, just a couple

11 topics if I could proceed.

12             JUDGE JONES:  Sure.

13                     EXAMINATION

14 QUESTIONS BY MR. MacBRIDE

15        Q.   Dr. Loomis, there was some questions

16 asked you of regarding the O and M or operations and

17 maintenance jobs associated with the facility?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   I believe you testified your study

20 indicates that it would be 80 O and M jobs, do you

21 recall that?

22        A.   That's correct.

23        Q.   And just to clarify, would those jobs

24 all be permanent jobs, or would some of them be
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1 temporary jobs?

2        A.   Those would all be permanent jobs.

3        Q.   And then second, you were asked some

4 questions about the availability of more recent data

5 than the data you used in the studies you presented

6 in this case for one or both of your models.  Do you

7 have any information as to whether the use of the

8 more recent data than you used in your studies would

9 either increase the indicated economic benefits --

10 or excuse me the economic impacts, or decrease the

11 indicated economic impacts?

12        A.   No.

13        Q.   Thank you.  That's all the questions we

14 have.

15             JUDGE JONES:  Is there any recross?

16             MR. STALKER:  Not from me, Your Honor.

17             MR. DAVIS:  No, Your Honor.

18             JUDGE JONES:  That concludes the

19 questions for the witness.  Thank you, sir.

20             It appears, at least from the list, that

21 the next witness or witnesses will be Illinois

22 Landowner Alliance, ILA witnesses, is that -- is

23 that the case?

24             MR. PHILLIPS:  Yes, Your Honor.
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1             JUDGE JONES:  Are you ready to call one

2 of those?

3             MR. PHILLIPS:  Yes, Your Honor, we'd

4 call Dr. Marshall to the stand.

5             JUDGE JONES:  Sir, please raise your

6 right hand and be sworn.

7                    PAUL MARSHALL,

8 of lawful age, having been first duly sworn to

9 testify the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

10 the truth in the case aforesaid, deposes and says in

11 reply to oral interrogatories propounded as follows,

12 to-wit.

13             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Please be

14 seated.

15             By the way, any of the witnesses are

16 permitted to, certainly free to use that chair over

17 there as a place to put materials if you, if you

18 need to do that or would like to do that.

19             MR. PHILLIPS:  Thank you, Your Honor.

20                     EXAMINATION

21 QUESTIONS BY MR. PHILLIPS

22        Q.   Dr. Marshall, can you please state your

23 name and spell it for the court reporter?

24        A.   My name is Paul Marshall,
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1 M-A-R-S-H-A-L-L.

2        Q.   And can you provide your address,

3 please?

4        A.   I live at 2310 East US Highway 52.  The

5 town's name is Serena, S-E-R-E-N-A.

6        Q.   And are you a member of the Illinois

7 Landowners Alliance?

8        A.   I am.

9        Q.   And do you hold a position with that

10 organization?

11        A.   I'm a member of the Board of Directors,

12 and I was elected to be secretary for the party.

13        Q.   Okay, thank you.  Dr. Marshall, do you

14 have in front of you a document labeled ILA Exhibit

15 1.5 REV?

16        A.   I do.

17        Q.   Is it marked as the Revised Direct

18 Testimony of Paul Marshall?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   Was it filed on eDocket on December 5,

21 2013?

22        A.   It was.

23        Q.   Does it consist of a total of 18 pages,

24 including the cover page that are all questions and
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1 answers?

2        A.   It does.

3        Q.   Was this document prepared by you or

4 under your supervision?

5        A.   It was.

6        Q.   If you were to -- if I were to ask you

7 those same questions today, would your answers be

8 the same?

9        A.   They would.

10        Q.   And do you have any corrections to make

11 to that document?

12        A.   I do not.

13        Q.   And is this the direct testimony you

14 wish to present to the Commission today?

15        A.   It is.

16        Q.   Okay.  Dr. Marshall, do you have in

17 front of you a document labeled ILA Exhibit 1.01

18 REV?

19        A.   I do.

20        Q.   Isn't it Exhibit 2 in reference to your

21 direct testimony that we just spoke about?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Does it consist of a cover page and ten

24 pages of a table titled ILA Membership List?
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1        A.   The pages aren't numbered, but it --

2 yes.

3        Q.   Is it a true and correct copy of what it

4 purports to represent?

5        A.   It is.

6        Q.   And was it filed on eDocket on December

7 5th, 2013?

8        A.   It was.

9        Q.   And finally, Dr. Marshall, do you have

10 in front of you a document labeled ILA Exhibit 1.2

11 REV?

12        A.   I do.

13        Q.   Is it marked as the Rebuttal Testimony

14 of Paul Marshall, Ph.D.?

15        A.   It is.

16        Q.   Does it consist of a total of 17 pages,

17 including the cover pages that are questions and

18 answers?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   Was it filed on eDocket on October 25th,

21 2013?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Was this document prepared by you or

24 under your supervision?
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1        A.   It was.

2        Q.   If I were to ask you those same

3 questions today, would your answers be the same?

4        A.   They would.

5        Q.   Do you have any corrections to make to

6 the document?

7        A.   No.

8        Q.   Is this the Rebuttal Testimony you wish

9 to present to the Commission today?

10        A.   It is.

11             MR. PHILLIPS:  At this point, Your

12 Honor, we would move to have ILA Exhibits 1.0 REV

13 filed on eDocket on December 5th, 2013, Exhibit 1.01

14 REV filed on eDocket on December 5th, 2013, and

15 Exhibit 1.2 REV filed on eDocket on October 25th

16 entered into the record and submit Dr. Marshall for

17 cross examination.

18             JUDGE JONES:  Any response to that

19 motion?

20             MR. RIPPIE:  No objection.

21             MR. MacBRIDE:  No objection.

22             JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show that

23 those evidentiary items as sponsored by this witness

24 are hereby entered into the evidentiary record.
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1 More specifically, 1.0 REV, 1.01 REV that were filed

2 on December 5th, 2013, 1.2 REV is admitted as filed

3 an eDocket on October 25, 2013.

4               (ILA Exhibits 1.0 REV, 1.01 REV

5                and 1.02 REV were admitted into

6                evidence at this time.)

7             JUDGE JONES:  It appears that Counsel

8 for Com-Ed and Rock Island have questions for this

9 witness.  Who would like to begin?

10             MR. RIPPIE:  I'll proceed, Your Honor.

11             JUDGE JONES:  Okay.

12                     EXAMINATION

13 QUESTIONS BY MR. RIPPIE

14        Q.   Good morning, Dr. Marshall, my name is

15 Glenn Rippie, I'm one of the attorneys for

16 Commonwealth Edison Company.  How are you this

17 morning?

18        A.   I'm doing great.  Good morning to you,

19 sir.

20        Q.   I have some questions for you this

21 morning, and if at any time you don't understand

22 those questions, don't understand an abbreviation I

23 use, or need clarification in order to give a

24 complete answer, will you let me know?
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1        A.   Certainly.

2        Q.   Is it fair to say that your opposition

3 to the Rock Island Project is not based on any one

4 single factor?

5        A.   That's true, there's a large number of

6 factors why we're opposed to this project.

7        Q.   I did notice, however, that in your

8 direct testimony, and if you want to reference it,

9 it's at Page 3, Lines 23 through 24, the first

10 factor that you mentioned was that most of, and I'm

11 quoting, ILA's members -- well, I'm sorry; now I'm

12 quoting:  "Recognize that this project is not needed

13 to supply Illinois with reliable electric power."

14             Do you see that testimony?

15        A.   I do.

16        Q.   Do you understand that a reliable supply

17 of electric power is critical to the state of

18 Illinois?

19        A.   Yes, I do.

20        Q.   And would you agree that it's also

21 critical to Illinois farmers and, and land owners?

22        A.   Absolutely critical, yes.

23        Q.   Would you agree that there might be

24 times when Illinois or regional rules would require
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1 the construction of a transmission line in order to

2 assure efficient or reliable supply of electric

3 power to Illinois customers?

4        A.   Yes, of course.

5        Q.   Does your testimony intend to comment in

6 any way on the construction of a project that is

7 necessary for the efficient or reliable operation of

8 the electric power system?

9        A.   Well, let me be clear what I was

10 testifying about.  Either I or the organization I

11 belong to are not anti-power line in general.  As

12 evidence of that, I granted an easement to Ameren to

13 build a power line on some property that I own in

14 2010, and I didn't spend my time and money to fight

15 it as I have here.  I and the organization I belong

16 to are opposed to this particular power line.

17        Q.   Fair enough.  Are you aware of whether

18 or not there is a process for identifying whether

19 there is a need for a project in order to have the

20 regional electric power system operate reliably and

21 efficiently?

22        A.   Well, it's beyond the scope of what I, I

23 normally read, but I try keep up on the vetting

24 process between the regional transmission
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1 organizations, MISO and TJM in this particular case.

2        Q.   Now have Rock Island representatives

3 spoken to you and to ILA about the project from time

4 to time?

5        A.   I attended one open house meeting, which

6 I believe was in November of 2011 in Mendota,

7 Illinois, and I've had some written correspondence

8 from Clean Line, probably a total of three or four

9 written communications sent to me.

10        Q.   And by Clean Line, do you mean Rock

11 Island Clean Line, or do you mean the parent of Rock

12 Island Clean Line, Clean Line Energy Partners?

13        A.   I believe the open house was sponsored

14 by Clean Line Energy, but the correspondence that I

15 received was all from Rock Island.

16        Q.   Okay.  And have you also had occasion to

17 review Rock Island's website and written literature

18 that Rock Island has provided to members of the

19 community?

20        A.   Fairly extensively, yes.

21        Q.   Are you aware of any assertion orally or

22 in writing that Rock Island has made to you or ILA

23 that the project is necessary in order to provide

24 reliable or efficient service to Illinois customers?
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1        A.   I've seen that in writing in their

2 literature, and I've also read it in some of the

3 other direct testimony.

4        Q.   Are you aware at, in any of those

5 communications whether Rock Island has identified

6 any alternatives to the project that it has studied?

7        A.   No, I'm not.

8        Q.   In the communications from Rock Island

9 to yourself, be they oral or written, has Rock

10 Island ever explained to you how you or another ILA

11 member could use the line as a customer?

12        A.   Well, given that it's a high voltage

13 direct current, there'd be no way for anybody, any

14 land owners or anybody in the organization I belong

15 to, to use any part of the line.

16        Q.   Are you aware of whether or not Rock

17 Island has made an unconditional commitment to

18 construct the project if regulatory approvals are

19 granted?

20        A.   Well, it doesn't appear so.  There

21 appears to be questions about financial and there

22 appears to be questions about track record and what

23 Rock Island Clean Line has done in the past, so no,

24 I'd have to say that neither I or the organization I
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1 belong to have a heightened degree of confidence

2 that this will be built.

3        Q.   Have land owners, in fact, been offered

4 deals for land rights that included different

5 payments, depending upon whether or not Rock Island

6 elected to proceed with construction of the line?

7        A.   They haven't to me, and I don't have

8 firsthand knowledge of such deals.

9        Q.   Fair enough.  Now you indicated earlier

10 that you had seen some literature in which Rock

11 Island claimed that its line was necessary for

12 reliable operation of the system.  Did I understand

13 you correctly?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   What literature was that?

16        A.   I don't know that I could be specific

17 and cite dates or particular correspondence, but in

18 some of the written correspondence that I received

19 from Rock Island Clean Line that it references

20 reliability, reduction of cost of electricity, and

21 meeting the needs of renewable portfolio standards

22 for various states.

23        Q.   Now I notice in your direct testimony

24 that you indicate that you have a background as a
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1 bank manager and investment analyst in addition to

2 being a farmer, is that correct?

3        A.   Not exactly, Mr. Rippie.  I worked with

4 brokerage firm Merrill Lynch from 1982 to 2007,

5 primarily as a retail broker.  Took a little time

6 off, went to work for First National Bank of Ottawa

7 as a Farm Manager and a Trust Officer.

8        Q.   And within the scope of your duties as a

9 Trust Officer and Farm Manager for the First

10 National Bank of Ottawa?

11        A.   Correct.

12        Q.   Are you called upon to evaluate the

13 ability of borrowers or other potential clients of

14 the bank to conduct their business on an ongoing

15 basis?

16        A.   Not so much what you described, but I am

17 responsible for investment selection for various

18 trust portfolios that the bank maintains, so I do

19 review stock and bond offerings.

20        Q.   Okay.  Well, I wasn't talking so much

21 about securities in the nature of stock and bond

22 offerings, but as a, as a farm manager, are you

23 called upon to evaluate the ability, for example, of

24 a farm to continue to function or to operate over
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1 the next season or year?

2        A.   Certainly.

3        Q.   What sort of factors would a banker such

4 as yourself, or farm manager for a bank such as

5 yourself look at to determine if a farm is capable

6 of financing its operations during the next growing

7 season?

8             MR. MacBRIDE:  I would -- I have an

9 objection to the question, Judge.  Number one, it's

10 outside the scope of Mr. -- or Dr. Marshall's filed

11 testimony.

12             Second, this question, this questioning

13 is clearly not adverse.  It's not proper cross

14 examination.  It appears to be attempting to elicit

15 testimony from Dr. Marshall, who's a witness

16 testifying in opposition to the project, for the

17 benefit of the questioner's party which is also

18 opposing the project.

19             JUDGE JONES:  Any response?

20             MR. RIPPIE:  Yes, sir.  In reverse

21 order, if you don't mind, Judge.

22             The objection that the cross examination

23 is not adverse to the interests of the petitioner is

24 not a valid objection.  Cross examination where
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1 there are multiple parties opposed to a project

2 potentially on different grounds is appropriate if

3 it is cross examination of the witness, and that is

4 if it is my examination of what knowledge this

5 witness has that bears on the claims of my client's

6 witnesses and positions.  The fact that it may or

7 may not also be adverse to the petitioner is not

8 relevant.  Frankly, cross examination, is improper,

9 if it is an attempt to circumvent the, Mr.

10 MacBride's clients' ability to question the witness,

11 or to conduct proper cross examination, or in the

12 case of his witness, proper redirect examination.

13 None of this is that case.  He is free to conduct

14 cross examination on this or any other proper

15 subject.  But it is utterly improper to deny me the

16 right to question a witness on his knowledge on a

17 subject matter that is relevant to my witness's

18 testimony, because it is in my client's interest to

19 do so, ie., it furthers opposition to the project.

20             With respect to the scope objection,

21 that objection, first of all, doesn't belong to Mr.

22 MacBride, it only belongs to the Counsel for the

23 witness, and the Counsel for the witness has made no

24 such objection.  But more importantly, it is not



593

1 beyond the scope of his direct, because he relies on

2 his experience as a bank manager in order to reach

3 conclusions about the project, its effect on land,

4 and whether or not it will actually occur as he just

5 testified under previous cross examination.

6             JUDGE JONES:  Mr. MacBride, any reply?

7             MR. MacBRIDE:  Judge, I think either my,

8 the second part of my objection to which Mr. Rippie

9 replied first maybe was not clear, I'm not objecting

10 on the grounds of adversity to my client's interest,

11 I'm objecting on the grounds that there's not

12 adversity with respect to this, this questioning

13 between the interest of Commonwealth Edison and the

14 Illinois Landowners -- Landowners Association.  For

15 that reason I think the cross examination is

16 improper.

17             MR. RIPPIE:  I could not disagree more,

18 there's simply no such objection.  For example, in

19 multi-defendant cases the defendants are entitled to

20 cross examine each other's witnesses on exculpatory

21 matters all the time.  The same is true with civil

22 cases.  It's simply not an objection.

23             JUDGE JONES:  All right, thank you.

24 I'll take that element of the objection up first.  I



594

1 think that we have multi, multiparty cases that we

2 do run into situations where so called cross

3 examination can be of a witness testifying before a

4 party whose position is more in line with the party

5 doing the questioning than, than not.  It's just one

6 of those situations we have to, we have to deal

7 with.  There is never any good -- good way to deal

8 with it.  I think we have to be careful in a couple,

9 a couple respects.  To the extent that the party

10 asking the questions is somewhat aligned with the

11 witness or party who put the witness on, then

12 leading questions are, are to be avoided, but I

13 don't think we have an objection here that the

14 questions are leading.

15             I think the other element that's raised

16 is that there may be some unfairness to, to a line

17 of questioning under the circumstances, and I don't

18 know that there is really a simple answer to that

19 problem.  The alternative is to prohibit such

20 questioning, and I just do not believe that

21 prohibition, outright prohibition of such questions

22 because the party asking them is somewhat aligned

23 with the witness is a sustainable objection under

24 Illinois evidentiary rules.
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1             Now while speaking to the issue of

2 fairness, I think there may be one, one other thing,

3 or other accommodation that can be made here.  To

4 the extent Mr. MacBride is, or will be asserting

5 that he should be given an opportunity to cross on

6 Mr. Rippie's cross under the circumstances, we can

7 deal with that if it arises.  Typically, cross on

8 cross is not a favored process in these cases, where

9 would it end?  But under circumstances like this, if

10 there is a case made for allowing that in the

11 interest of fairness, given Mr. MacBride's concerns

12 about the line of questioning, then we will then,

13 you know, we will deal with that when, when the

14 time, when the time arrives.

15             With respect to the other piece of the

16 objection which was made first, but probably

17 received less, less attention during the argument,

18 it's, it's been a little while since the question

19 was asked, I don't think we really need to hear it

20 again, but I believe the, that point in the

21 question, in the questioning it appeared to me that

22 that question was somewhat preliminary, or

23 foundational in nature.  So whether that question

24 leads somewhere that may be to an objectionable
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1 place, I do not know, but from what I recall of the

2 question, I think that the, that that objection to

3 the question is, is not one that will be, will be

4 sustained for those reasons.  That concludes the

5 ruling.

6             Now do you recall what you were asked?

7             MR. RIPPIE:  If you don't mind, Your

8 Honor, I'll, I'll restate it and perhaps make it

9 even more foundational.

10        Q   (By Mr. Rippie) Dr. Marshall, what sort

11 of factors would you, as a bank manager, look at to

12 determine if a farm or business you were evaluating

13 is capable of financing its future operations?

14        A.   Well, with respect to farmers, no

15 different than the other business, be a question of

16 balance sheet and profit and loss, skill, track

17 record and education of the, the people involved,

18 quality of the equipment, skill and marketing, and

19 really a detailed personal financial statement of

20 the parties involved with respect to their debt load

21 and need for, need for financing.  Collateral would

22 be -- if we were talking about debt financing,

23 collateral would have to cover whatever financing we

24 might be providing.
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1        Q.   So remembering the factors you've

2 identified, in your view could a prudent banker

3 conclude that a business was capable of financing

4 its proposed operations if it had, for example, one

5 percent equity, one percent or less collateral, no

6 contractually committed source of equity, no

7 contractually committed customers, and no

8 contractually committed revenue stream?

9             MR. MacBRIDE:  Objection.  Again, I

10 object that this is outside the scope of Dr.

11 Marshall's testimony.  The fact that he's identified

12 as part of his employment history as a farm manager

13 for banks certainly doesn't open the door to this

14 questioning in which has not been addressed in his

15 substantive testimony.

16             JUDGE JONES:  Before we get to the

17 response, is that question a hypothetical, or is

18 that something else?

19             MR. RIPPIE:  No, that is a hypothetical

20 assuming those five statements which corresponded to

21 the factors that the witness identified.

22             JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Now do you

23 have a response to the objection?

24             MR. RIPPIE:  Yes, the response is that
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1 this witness does testify about the likelihood that

2 the line will actually be built and the effect on

3 land values based on the uncertainty.  And I asked

4 him questions about that subject matter early,

5 earlier in my cross examination, which didn't draw

6 objections.  I think it's appropriate, given his

7 experience, to take it to one step farther, which is

8 to inquire as to whether or not, under the

9 circumstances, and given his expertise, what the

10 realistic probability of that occurring is, and

11 that's the intention of the question with that

12 hypothetical.

13             JUDGE JONES:  We may have to take a step

14 back here.  Is this witness testifying as an expert?

15             MR. PHILLIPS:  Your Honor, as to his

16 testimony I believe in his direct or his rebuttal,

17 he does testify as to the positions he's had, and he

18 uses the positions he's held as experiences in

19 making certain statements, which I, I believe would

20 be being used as an expert, I suppose.

21             As far as Mr. Rippie's questioning, I'm

22 not sure if Mr. Rippie, himself, have used him as an

23 expert in these particular areas, I wouldn't be

24 qualified to opine what's going on in Mr. Rippie's
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1 head, but I believe in Dr. Marshall's testimony he

2 does make it clear that he holds certain experiences

3 and certain positions and certain levels of

4 education that give him the ability to opine on

5 things that maybe a lay person could not.

6             JUDGE JONES:  Mr. MacBride, anything

7 further?

8             MR. MacBRIDE:  Well, to your point of

9 whether Dr. Marshall is being offered as an expert,

10 I, we would -- we wouldn't dispute that he's got

11 expertise in farming, he's testified on experience

12 with soil compaction, other impacts of construction

13 to farming activity on the soil, so he's got

14 experience in that area.  So if he's being offered

15 as an expert in that area, we don't dispute that,

16 but we would dispute that he's, as his testimony is

17 presented that it's being offered as an expert on

18 financial matters.

19             JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Well, I think

20 it's time to move on here.  I appreciate the

21 arguments that everybody has made, several of you

22 who have made them.

23             This line of questioning is, it's a

24 close call.  Part of the, part of the problem again
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1 is the fact that we have many parties in this case,

2 and many witnesses, and some are more aligned with

3 witnesses and witnesses' parties than others.  I

4 will allow the question and ask the witness to

5 answer the question if the, assuming the witness

6 understands the question, and assuming the witness

7 can answer it.  And if you do not believe you can

8 answer that question, then tell us so.

9             THE WITNESS:  Mr. Rippie, if a

10 hypothetical company came forward with the

11 hypothetical circumstances that you had in your

12 question, my answer would be no, it would be highly

13 unlikely that that operation could be financed.

14             MR. RIPPIE:  Thank you, Dr. Marshall,

15 that's all the questions I have for you for you.

16             JUDGE JONES:  Mr. MacBride, looks like

17 you're up.

18             MR. MacBRIDE:  Thank you.

19                     EXAMINATION

20 QUESTIONS BY MR. MacBRIDE

21        Q.   Good morning, Dr. Marshall, my name is

22 Owen MacBride, I'm representing Rock Island Clean

23 Line in this case.

24        A.   Good morning, Mr. MacBride.
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1        Q.   Sir, your testimony indicates, I

2 believe, that you have ownership interest in two

3 separate farm properties in the South County, is

4 that correct?

5        A.   I do.

6        Q.   And one of those properties is located

7 in Serena Township?

8        A.   Correct.

9        Q.   The other property is located in Dayton

10 Township of LaSalle County?

11        A.   That's correct.

12        Q.   Does the preferred route of the Rock

13 Island Project cross both of these properties?

14        A.   No, just the one in Serena.

15        Q.   And I understand that you and your

16 sister inherited these property, is that correct?

17        A.   That's correct.

18        Q.   Now the Serena Township property is

19 approximately 200 acres, is that correct?

20        A.   That's correct.

21        Q.   Can you tell us the approximate length

22 and width dimensions of the property?

23        A.   Well, east to west the widest part of

24 the farm is one mile, and north to south it would be
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1 a half mile.  It has kind of an L shape to it.  It

2 runs completely across Section 25 to the east, and

3 to the -- well, the northern -- the north, northeast

4 quarter is, is taken out with other, other property.

5        Q.   All right.  Property owned by someone

6 else.

7        A.   Correct.

8        Q.   And is it your understanding that the

9 preferred route of the transmission line would be on

10 your property for about one mile?

11        A.   That's correct.

12        Q.   And is it your understanding that this

13 would mean that about, that four to six transmission

14 structures would be on your property?

15        A.   From the literature that I've read and

16 the testimony given so far, that's my understanding,

17 yes.

18        Q.   Have you had any meetings with Rock

19 Island representatives to discuss specifically where

20 the transmission line would run on your property and

21 where the structures would be placed?

22        A.   Well, no, I, I signed paperwork asking

23 not to be contacted.  I -- as long as I have the

24 ability to say no, I don't anticipate that I'll have
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1 this on my land.

2        Q.   All right.  So you've had no such

3 discussions.

4        A.   No.

5        Q.   Now you indicated that during the time

6 that you were employed by Merrill Lynch from 1982 to

7 2007, you were a retail broker, is that correct?

8        A.   That's correct.

9        Q.   Now you state in your direct testimony

10 at lines 99 to 102 that based on your background,

11 you are well versed in farming operations, farm

12 values and plant growth, is that correct?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   Do you have an estimate of the current

15 fair market value per acre of the Serena Township

16 property?

17        A.   Well, the most recent farm sale in the

18 area was, earlier this week was a bit north of us in

19 Lee County.  A very highly productive farm sold for

20 $15,000 an acre.  Closer by, probably eight weeks

21 ago in, in LaSalle County in Freedom Township land

22 sold for $13,500 an acre, also highly productive

23 ground.  So I would say that on my place, which has

24 excellent soils and excellent producing farm, I'd
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1 estimate the land value to be somewhere between

2 those two.

3        Q.   Okay, thank you.  So if I can do this

4 math in my head, this would indicate that the value

5 of your 200 acre Serena Township parcel would be on

6 the order currently of 2.7 to $3 million?

7        A.   That's correct.

8        Q.   And that would not include the value of

9 your, your residence and your buildings on the

10 property?

11        A.   That's correct.

12        Q.   Do you have an opinion or a view as to

13 how the market value per acre of the Serena Township

14 property has changed over say the past ten years?

15        A.   In 1998, I sold an easement to a

16 pipeline company for $5000.00 an acre.  So it

17 essentially has more than doubled in that timeframe.

18        Q.   And was that 5000 an acre price, was it

19 your understanding that was intended to be a fee --

20 the payment for the fee value of the easement?

21        A.   That's ultimately what it boiled down

22 to, yes.

23        Q.   All right.  So actually it would appear

24 that in 15 years, the price per acre of your
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1 property may have tripled, correct?

2        A.   Close to it, yes.

3        Q.   And to what factors would you attribute

4 that increase?

5        A.   Well, several.  Current interest rates

6 being so low, and farming being cash positive has

7 attracted an awful lot of investors who would

8 probably normally be in income producing

9 investments, being attracted to farm ground is an

10 alternative income producing investment.  There have

11 been increases in genetics and farming practices

12 that have raised the productivity of the farms

13 rather substantially in a ten-year period, so we're

14 producing considerably more at my place in corn and

15 soybeans than we did ten years go on average, and so

16 we're, we're raising more and consequently selling

17 more, so the farms are generating more revenue.

18        Q.   Would you consider overall price trends

19 for the, the commodities you grow to be a factor in

20 your evaluation of your land?

21        A.   It hadn't work out that way, Mr.

22 MacBride.  Last year we were selling corn for seven

23 and a half, $8.00 a bushel, and this year we're

24 selling corn for four and a quarter.  But yet the
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1 land value's been maintained.

2        Q.   When you referred in one of your

3 previous answers to investors being attracted, I

4 take it you're referring to people who are not

5 actually buying property for purposes of farming it

6 themselves?

7        A.   That's correct.

8        Q.   All right.  And what do these investors

9 typically do when they acquire the property?

10        A.   They'll come to some arrangement with a

11 farm tenant to operate the farm for them.  They

12 might engage the services of somebody like me, as a

13 farm manager, to do that for them.

14        Q.   Now is it your understanding that the

15 preferred route of the Rock Island Transmission Line

16 will cross parts of Rock Island, Whiteside, Henry

17 Bureau, and Grundy Counties, as well as LaSalle

18 Counties.

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   And do you have an understanding as to

21 whether the values of agricultural lands in these

22 counties have shown a similar increase over the past

23 ten to fifteen years as you've just described for

24 your property in LaSalle County?
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1        A.   It would vary somewhat by the quality of

2 the farm ground, itself, with the less productive

3 ground possibly not seeing quite the same increases

4 that we've seen on the very high quality ground, but

5 in general, yes.

6        Q.   What crops do you typically grow on your

7 Serena Township property?

8        A.   It's a very complicated rotation system.

9 Half of the farm is corn, the other half is

10 soybeans.

11        Q.   But -- all right.  So corn and soybeans.

12 And do you sell your crops to a particular buyer,

13 like Carpal or ADM?

14        A.   That's part of the marketing plan, we go

15 where the best prices are.  And yes, we have sold

16 grain to both of those.  GrainCo Farmers Supply in

17 Serena is another close-by outlet for our grain.

18        Q.   Now is it your understanding that Rock

19 Island has agreed to use lattice box structures for

20 the transmission line, except in certain situations

21 where more robust structures are needed?

22        A.   By lattice boxes, you mean the mounted

23 pole structure?

24        Q.   Yes.
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1        A.   Yes, that's in the Ag Mitigation

2 Agreement that they will use the mounted poles as,

3 where possible.  That's my understanding.

4        Q.   All right.  Okay.  And is it your

5 understanding then that these lattice box structures

6 will have a single foundation base?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   And do you agree that where the lattice

9 box structures with a single base are used, very

10 little land will be permanently taken out of

11 production by the structure bases?

12        A.   The amount of land permanently taken out

13 by those, the footprint of the tower, itself, will

14 be quite small.  The footprint is a little bit

15 larger when you figure trying to farm around those,

16 you'll lose a little bit of ground.  So it's a, the

17 amount of ground taken out of production is somewhat

18 larger than just the tower base.

19        Q.   Okay.  Do you happen to have with you

20 copies of the responses to Rock Island's Data

21 Request to the ILA that --

22        A.   I believe I do.

23        Q.   -- you responded to?  Could you look at

24 Rock, the -- excuse me, could you look at ILA's
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1 response to Rock Island Data Request 3.20, if you

2 have that?  And if you don't let me know, and I'll

3 give you a copy.

4             Do you have that in front of you, sir?

5        A.   I do.

6        Q.   Okay.  Look at Part C there, it says:

7 "Currently on the 200 acre farm owned by Mr.

8 Marshall and his sister, there are obstacles that

9 require farming around."

10             Do you see that?

11        A.   I do.

12        Q.   All right.  Is that referring to the

13 Serena Township property, or the Dayton Township

14 property?

15        A.   That would be the, the Serena.

16        Q.   All right.  And the obstacles you're

17 referring to there are existing obstacles, correct?

18        A.   The only obstacles on that farm are two

19 relatively small waterways that we farm around.

20        Q.   So that's what you're referring to by

21 the obstacles?

22        A.   Correct.

23        Q.   And what do you mean by, that it

24 requires farming around?
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1        A.   Well, they're, they're seeded grass

2 waterways to direct water to, to proper drainage,

3 and they have to stay in grass, so we don't till

4 those areas, we don't plant those areas, we don't

5 conduct any farming operations on those areas.

6        Q.   Okay.  All right, still looking at that

7 same response to Item 3.20C, you refer to operators

8 of farm equipment such as sprayers, some with booms

9 in excess of 100 feet in length, do you see that?

10        A.   Yes, I do.

11        Q.   And do you use such equipment on your

12 farm?

13        A.   We don't, we don't operate the equipment

14 ourselves, we hire the spraying done, mostly by a

15 company by the name of Ag Tech, that come in and

16 spray for us, so they're using large commercial

17 sprayers with booms from, from tip to tip could be

18 in excess of 125 feet.

19        Q.   All right.  But, so this equipment of

20 the type you just described is being used on your

21 farm.

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Not used by you, personally, but it's

24 used on your farm.



611

1        A.   Extensively.

2        Q.   All right.  And you also refer in that

3 response to other wide implements.  Could you

4 describe what the other wide implements are that

5 you're referring to?

6        A.   Well, the size of farm equipment has

7 been growing about as rapidly as the value of the

8 farm ground, and it's not uncommon to, to have

9 planters that will plant up to 40 rows.  We don't

10 have anything that large that we operate on our

11 farm, we're, we're planting with 18 to 20, 24 rows

12 at a time.  But it is large wide equipment that the

13 operator has to be responsible for, and that is one

14 of our fears, that operating this equipment,

15 especially at night in the area of these towers.

16        Q.   I assume by the way that the, the

17 various types of equipment that are used on your

18 property, and the other types of equipment you've

19 described, is fueled by gasoline and diesel fuel, is

20 that correct?

21        A.   Correct.

22        Q.   And is that gasoline or diesel fuel

23 refined locally in the area?

24        A.   I don't know where it's refined.  The
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1 closest refinery is in Morris and Channahon about 18

2 miles away, but I, I, as far as what's in the tank

3 of the tractor right at the moment, I have no idea

4 where it was refined.

5        Q.   The crude petroleum that is refined into

6 the gasoline or diesel you use to run your farm

7 machines is probably drilled and produced somewhere

8 outside of Illinois, would you agree?

9        A.   Yes, I would.

10        Q.   All right.  In fact, it probably, it may

11 come from oil production areas in Texas, or the Gulf

12 Coast, or possibly North Dakota or Western Canada,

13 would you agree with that?

14        A.   In all likelihood, it could, yes.

15        Q.   And that crude oil is transported to

16 refineries through pipeline systems that traverse

17 hundreds of miles?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   All right.  And those pipelines cross

20 hundreds, and perhaps thousands of land owners'

21 property, correct?

22        A.   Correct.  I have them on my property.

23        Q.   Now if you would look at your direct

24 testimony, please, at Lines 192 to 197?
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1        A.   I've got them here.

2        Q.   And you're referring there to a sale of

3 foreclosed farmland that sold for approximately

4 $700.00 per acre below your expectations, is that

5 correct?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   This property -- this particular

8 property was located in Grundy County, correct?

9        A.   That's correct.

10        Q.   And it was a foreclosure sale, correct?

11        A.   We were selling land that the bank had

12 foreclosed on, that's right.

13        Q.   You've, you've indicated that the price

14 was lower than your expectations primarily because

15 of an easement across the property for a city sewer

16 line and a sewer lift station, is that correct?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   That, and these, these were municipal

19 facilities?

20        A.   City of Morris.

21        Q.   Okay.  Was the property located in the

22 City of Morris?

23        A.   Not in the city proper, this would have

24 been along Ashley Road, it would have been north and
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1 slightly east of town.

2        Q.   Were there other contributing factors to

3 the sales price being less than you expected, in

4 addition to these, these two sewer facilities?

5        A.   In, in setting the price expectation, I

6 think we've taken the other negatives into account.

7 There was some access issues, there was some soil

8 quality issues, it wasn't a top of the line farm,

9 but we accounted to those in setting the estimate

10 for what we thought it should sell for.  So yes, we

11 did, we did factor in as many of the features of the

12 property as we could to come up with an estimated

13 price, and we did that in conjunction with the local

14 auctioneer, who I guess we would call the local

15 expert in setting those prices.

16        Q.   Well, let me ask you to look at your

17 response to -- or ILA's response to Rock Island Data

18 Request 3.23, that you have in front of you.

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   And I'm looking near the end of the

21 answer to Part B, it says there:  Were all -- well,

22 first, do you see the response says:  "This was

23 because the buyer was concerned about traffic to the

24 lift station and having to farm around the obstacle.
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1 There were also other contributing factors

2 discussed."

3             What were the other contributing

4 factors.

5        A.   As I mentioned, this was a piece of

6 property, it was 126 acres, I think, that was

7 somewhat difficult to get to.  There were two access

8 points, one went by a city water and treatment

9 facility, and the other access was actually through

10 a residential neighborhood.  But as I say, we had

11 taken those into account in, in coming up with this

12 $7000.00 expectation.

13             I might add that it was, it was in some

14 post sale discussion with the guy that bought it

15 that nailed down the idea that it was the, the

16 obstruction and the lift, the sewage lift station

17 that were the reason he didn't choose to pay more

18 for it.

19        Q.   Was your, your view that the property

20 sold for approximately $700.00 per acre below your

21 expectations based on an appraisal or any other

22 formal evaluation?

23        A.   The, the 7,000, when you're dealing in a

24 universe where you have to deal with auditors and
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1 bank examiners, you have to have appraisals when you

2 sell something to make sure that you're getting

3 something close to the fair value, so yes, that was

4 based in part on appraisal.

5        Q.   Let me ask you to look again at the

6 response to Data Request 3.23.  And the question

7 was:  "Provide the basis for Mr. Marshall's

8 determination that the foreclosed farmland sold for

9 approximately $700.00 per acre below his

10 expectations on the basis of the easements in

11 question, including any supporting documents."

12             Do you see that question?

13        A.   I do.

14        Q.   All right.  And the answer said:  "No

15 supporting documents were utilized in this

16 response."

17             Is that correct?

18        A.   I didn't, I didn't have, I didn't have a

19 copy of a, of an appraisal available.  In part, in

20 talking to the people at the bank, there was even

21 some question whether I should bring this particular

22 piece up, given the somewhat confidential nature of

23 the bank dealings, and we were reluctant to, to

24 identify the parties involved here, because it was a
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1 bank transaction.

2        Q.   So, so what you're saying in the answer

3 you just completed is that you had some discussion

4 with the bank as to whether you should mention this

5 incident in your testimony in this case?

6        A.   That's correct.

7        Q.   You also state in this response near the

8 end of the large paragraph:  "This was not based on

9 documents or studies, but was based on the opinions

10 of those present;" correct?

11        A.   To tell you the truth, I can't remember

12 what the appraised value was on it, but I based what

13 I put in, in this response to a lot of the

14 discussion that was held prior to the sale mostly

15 with the auctioneer that handled it, and with the

16 other people that I work with at the bank that were

17 involved in the sale that have considerable

18 experience in selling farm ground.

19        Q.   All right.  Just so the record is clear,

20 did I read that last sentence correctly, that -- was

21 it correct that this was not based on documents or

22 studies, but was based on the opinions --

23        A.   That's, that's what we had written in

24 there, yes.
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1        Q.   Now sir, I understand that at some point

2 you received a letter directly from Mr. Stephen

3 Chard of the Illinois Department of Agriculture

4 transmitting a copy of the final Agricultural Impact

5 Mitigation Agreement that has been entered into

6 between Rock Island and the Illinois Department of

7 Agriculture?

8        A.   Yes, I did.

9        Q.   Is it your understanding that other land

10 owners with properties that will be crossed by the

11 preferred route of the project also received this

12 mailing from the Department of Agriculture?

13        A.   That's my understanding, yes.

14        Q.   So did it appear that the letter was

15 intended to go to owners of the property that would

16 be crossed by the preferred route of the

17 transmission line?

18        A.   That was my understanding, yes.

19        Q.   So is it your understanding that other

20 ILA members with properties that will be crossed by

21 the proposed route of the transmission line also

22 received this mailing from the Department of

23 Agriculture?

24        A.   That's my understanding, yes.
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1        Q.   And in that mailing Mr. Chard from the

2 Illinois Department of Agriculture pointed out that

3 each farm might have specific unique situations

4 which may need to be included in the easement

5 agreement, in addition to the provisions of the

6 Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreement, correct?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   Now do you have with you a copy of ILA's

9 response to the Illinois Commerce Commission Staff

10 Data Requests?

11        A.   I don't believe I do.  Is there a number

12 on that?

13        Q.   It's RJZ 1.3 is the one I'd like to ask

14 you about.

15             MR. PHILLIPS:  Mr. MacBride, if it

16 helps, I don't believe Mr. Marshall has that.

17             THE WITNESS:  I don't see --

18             MR. PHILLIPS:  He hasn't seen --

19             THE WITNESS:  -- that in my materials

20 here.

21             MR. MacBRIDE:  All right, thank you.

22 Judge, may I approach the witness to hand him a copy

23 of this response?

24             JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.
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1        Q   (By Mr. MacBride) Dr. Marshall, do you

2 have in front of you a document that at least is

3 labeled Data Request RJZ 1.3, appears to be a

4 question and summons?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   Okay.  And were you involved in

7 preparing this response on behalf of the ILA?

8        A.   I was.

9        Q.   All right.  Now you state in the first

10 part of the response to A, let me read this:  "The

11 length of time that soil compaction can affect crop

12 growth will depend on a number of factors, including

13 the depth of the initial compaction, soil types,

14 soil moisture content, the effectiveness of

15 mitigation efforts, farm tillage practices, types of

16 vegetation, and depth of frost.  In so far as the

17 request pertains to the instances in prior written

18 testimony, the effects could last less than one

19 year, or greater than a decade."

20             Correct?

21        A.   Correct.

22        Q.   You also go on to state in this

23 response, quote:  "Plants with deep fibrous root

24 systems such as alfalfa will penetrate compacted
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1 soils to some extend, and will ameliorate compaction

2 issues faster than the root systems of more shallow

3 rooted species, such as corn.  However, it may not

4 be economically feasible to plant deeply rooted

5 plant species in compacted areas."

6             Is that correct?

7        A.   Correct.

8        Q.   Can you explain what you mean by, or

9 what you meant in this response by:  "It may not be

10 economically feasible to plant deeply rooted species

11 in compacted areas?"

12        A.   There's a growing trend to using cover

13 crops between major production, major crops, and

14 this could be in the form of dry grass or hydro

15 branches or other things that would add organic

16 matter to the soil and penetrate deeply, but those

17 are, are tilled under and not harvested, they have

18 no economic value other than helping the soil.  We

19 don't make any money, we spend a little money on

20 that to do that.

21             Soybeans are somewhat deeply rooted, but

22 we can't continually grow just soybeans, we use a

23 year-to-year crop rotation.  I'm trying to think of

24 the deeply rooted species that would do what, what
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1 we need done to break up deep compaction that would

2 actually be worth a lot in an agricultural market,

3 and other than, other than possibly wheat, or I

4 mentioned alfalfa before, neither one of them would,

5 would work particularly well in our particular farm

6 situation.

7        Q.   You used the term "cover crops."  Can

8 you explain for the record what a cover crop is?

9        A.   We planted corn in, in late April,

10 harvested in October.  We may follow that with a, a

11 cover crop of some species that will hold the soil

12 in place to prevent wind and water erosion, add

13 organic matter and put roots down deeply to break up

14 compaction.  They grow through the fall, tilled

15 under in the spring, we start the cycle over,

16 production, production of crop.

17        Q.   Is a cover crop a crop in lieu of or

18 instead of or during a time period when you would

19 otherwise be planting a more profitable crop --

20        A.   No.

21        Q.   -- like corn and soybeans?

22        A.   No, it's planted in between crop

23 seasons, mostly, as I say, to hold the soil in place

24 and to sink down deep roots.
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1        Q.   And can you explain again why it would

2 not be economically feasible to plant these cover

3 crops, given that as I understand your last answer,

4 they're planted at a time when marketable crops

5 would not, would not be planted?

6        A.   If, if we had a strong need for a cover

7 crop -- we don't use cover crops on our, on our

8 farm.  We haven't identified a need for them yet to

9 justify spending money to make more passes over the

10 ground and to plant these.  We don't get the benefit

11 back from making the economic expenditure, so on my

12 farm in particular and what I was concerned about

13 here, it doesn't provide any revenue, and the

14 benefits that we get would not be worth the cost.

15 So it's uneconomical.

16        Q.   And why are you concerned about reducing

17 the number of passes over your land?

18        A.   Well, every, every point of pressure on

19 the soil results in some compaction.  Walking across

20 the ground does surface compaction.  Driving a

21 70,000 pound fully loaded concrete truck would

22 provide a lot of compaction.

23        Q.   And driving some of the large farm

24 equipment that's used on your property also
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1 potentially causes compaction.

2        A.   It certainly does, and that's one of the

3 reasons that things like cover crops are becoming

4 somewhat popular, because farm equipment has gotten

5 to a size that compaction is a significant issue.

6        Q.   Do you consider the use of cover crops a

7 good farming practice?

8        A.   Where needed, yes.

9        Q.   Do you consider it a good soil

10 conservation practice?

11        A.   When -- when they do what they're

12 supposed to do, yes, it would be.

13        Q.   You also indicated in the response to

14 Staff Data Request RJZ 1.3 that:  "Freezing and

15 thawing cycles will also work to alleviate soil

16 compaction, but again, these cycles are moderated by

17 winter temperature, depth of snow cover, and other

18 factors which change annually."

19             Is that correct?

20        A.   Correct.

21        Q.   And can you explain for us how freezing

22 and thawing cycles work to alleviate soil

23 compaction?

24        A.   Well, it's expansion and contraction.
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1 Freezing actually causes the soil, frozen soil to

2 expand.  Thawing shrinks it back down.  And that

3 movement of the soil, freezing and thawing, actually

4 does put pour space back into the soil.  But it's

5 limited by the depth of the frost, it's varied in

6 temperatures, and the timing.

7        Q.   Dr. Marshall, do you have drainage tile

8 systems installed on your farm properties?

9        A.   I do.

10        Q.   Do you know the location of the drainage

11 tiles on your properties?

12        A.   I know some of them.  These tiles were

13 put in, for the most part, in the late 1920's, early

14 1930's, and unfortunately, my grandfather wasn't a

15 good record keeper, and I don't have the locations.

16 We've had to do some tile repairs from time to time,

17 and obviously I know where those tiles are, but no,

18 I don't have a reliable tile map showing the

19 location of all of them.

20        Q.   Have you experienced tile damage as a

21 result of the operation of your own farm equipment

22 on the property?

23        A.   Well, it would be very difficult to

24 pinpoint what the cause of the tile damage is.  In



626

1 part, it's old.  It, too, is affected by freezing

2 and thawing if it freezes that deeply.

3             There's -- there could be a number of

4 reasons, but I don't, I couldn't honestly say that I

5 would know in repairing a broken tile what caused it

6 to break.

7        Q.   All right.  Well, just, just to be clear

8 on this, would you look at Lines 218 to 223 of your

9 direct testimony?

10        A.   Okay.

11        Q.   All right.  And you indicate there that

12 earlier this year you discovered damaged tile on

13 your farm that you believe was caused by traffic in

14 the field from farm equipment, sprayers and

15 fertilizer application, as well as prior pipeline

16 trucks.  Are you saying that you found the damaged

17 tile, and it could have been caused by any of those

18 previous factors?

19        A.   Exactly.

20        Q.   Okay.  Thank you, Dr. Marshall, that's

21 all the questions we have for you.

22             JUDGE JONES:  Mr. Phillips, do you have

23 redirect?

24             MR. PHILLIPS:  If I could just have a
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1 moment, Your Honor.

2             JUDGE JONES:  How long do you suggest

3 for that?

4             MR. PHILLIPS:  I really only need a

5 minute, a little break.

6             JUDGE JONES:  Go ahead.

7             MR. PHILLIPS:  All right, Your Honor.

8                     EXAMINATION

9 QUESTIONS BY MR. PHILLIPS

10        Q.   Dr. Marshall, is it true that each

11 piece, each pass of equipment, regardless, and as

12 you mentioned in your testimony, walking, everything

13 compacts soil, so it's just a matter of degree?

14        A.   That's correct.

15        Q.   Okay.  And you discussed when Mr.

16 MacBride asked you some questions about the size of

17 farm equipment getting bigger and bigger, is that

18 correct?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   Does farm equipment apply less ground

21 pressure than some forms of construction equipment?

22        A.   Well, it would depend on the footprint

23 of, of both pieces.  If you're talking about a

24 four-wheel drive tractor that has eight tires on it,
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1 that footprint gets spread out, that weight, it's a

2 ten-ton tractor, for example, it gets spread out

3 over a pretty good surface area, so the pounds per

4 square inch would be quite small.  Most construction

5 vehicles don't take that into account, operating

6 with smaller tires, thus the pressure is greater.

7 So I'd anticipate that construction equipment would,

8 would leave a more impactful footprint than farm

9 equipment.

10        Q.   Okay.  And just to make sure I

11 understood that, is it a fair statement that farm

12 equipment is designed, in part, even though it's

13 big, to not put as -- to minimize the amount of

14 ground pressure?

15        A.   Well, as I mentioned before, it's, it's

16 becoming a significant issue, so modern tractors are

17 coming out with tracks, grain carts have much larger

18 tires than they used to, combines have much larger

19 tires.  We're trying to spread the weight so that

20 the soil compaction is minimized.  That wouldn't be

21 necessarily so with construction equipment.

22        Q.   Okay.  You remember when Mr. MacBride

23 was asking you about that, the foreclosure sale in

24 your direct testimony?
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1        A.   Correct.

2        Q.   You said that one of the other issues

3 besides the sewer equipment, the sewer equipment was

4 access that was a fact that was taken in, is that

5 correct?

6        A.   Correct.

7        Q.   Are you aware of any places that, either

8 on your property, or are you aware because of your

9 position as a member of the, or as a board, a member

10 of the ILA, of any access issues that could be

11 caused by this power line being built?

12        A.   I don't know about access issues being

13 caused by the power line, but I have some concerns

14 about, on my own farm, the, the access to my

15 neighbors is probably going to bring more traffic

16 across me to get to them, because there's limited

17 access on the east side of their property.

18             So yes, the, the construction is, is

19 going to be affected by access by directing more

20 traffic in, in certain areas, I think.  Or at least

21 I fear.

22        Q.   Okay.  And you mentioned earlier that

23 you had asked Rock Island and its representatives to

24 not contact you, is that correct?
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1        A.   That's correct.

2        Q.   Is, in your written communication in

3 doing so, did you specifically say, however, that

4 they could contact you by US mail?

5        A.   I believe the form that I signed did say

6 that, and in practice, they have contacted me by

7 mail since, since that arrangement was put in place.

8        Q.   Okay.  And finally, you made the

9 statement that you don't really see a need or -- I'm

10 paraphrasing -- well, I guess would it be a correct

11 characterization of what you just said earlier that

12 you didn't see the need to really contact Rock

13 Island or speak to them, because you oppose this

14 project?

15        A.   Well, without eminent domain, if, if

16 they're going to approach me and try to buy an

17 easement, I'm not interested in selling.  If, if

18 they do obtain eminent domain and I'm forced to do

19 so, then we'll have a reason to talk, but until that

20 time, I have no interest in talking to them, because

21 I have no interest in having this on my property.

22        Q.   Okay.  Thank you very much, Dr.

23 Marshall, I have no further questions.

24             JUDGE JONES:  One moment.  Is there any
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1 recross?

2             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes, sir.

3                     EXAMINATION

4 QUESTIONS BY MR. MacBRIDE

5        Q.   Dr. Marshall, with regard to the

6 concerns you just expressed on redirect about the

7 access to your neighbor's property resulting in more

8 traffic on your property, I take it you also did

9 not, you have not discussed that concern with Rock

10 Island representatives?

11        A.   I haven't had any verbal discussions

12 with any Rock Island representatives, because I

13 don't expect that without -- without eminent domain,

14 which they're not seeking at the present time, that

15 I'd be in a position where I'd have to talk to them.

16 And I have no interest in having the power line on

17 my property unless forced.

18             MR. MacBRIDE:  Thank you.

19             MR. PHILLIPS:  Nothing, Your Honor.

20             JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you,

21 sir.  Off the record.

22             (Discussion off the record.)

23             JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record, we had

24 a short off the record discussion for the purposes
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1 indicated, I believe the next witness on the

2 schedule is an ILA witness, Witness Gray.  Are you

3 calling him at this time?

4             MR. SHAY:  Yes, Your Honor.

5             JUDGE JONES:  Sir, please raise your

6 right hand and be sworn.

7                    JEFFREY GRAY,

8 of lawful age, having been first duly sworn to

9 testify the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

10 the truth in the case aforesaid, deposes and says in

11 reply to oral interrogatories propounded as follows,

12 to-wit:

13             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, please be

14 seated.

15                     EXAMINATION

16 QUESTIONS BY MR. SHAY

17        Q.   Good morning.

18        A.   Good morning.

19        Q.   Please state your name for the record.

20        A.   Jeffrey McIntyre Gray.

21        Q.   And by whom are you employed?

22        A.   Gray, PLLC.

23        Q.   What is your business address?

24        A.   P.O. Box 620323, Middleton, Wisconsin,
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1 53562.

2        Q.   Are you offering certain testimony and

3 exhibits in this proceeding?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   On whose behalf are you offering the

6 testimony and exhibits?

7        A.   Illinois Landowners Alliance, NFP.

8        Q.   And have you prepared certain written

9 direct testimony for purposes of this proceeding?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   In front of you, do you have a document

12 mark as ILA Exhibit 7.0 that consists of 16 total

13 pages, that's entitled Direct Testimony of Jeffrey

14 M. Gray, Ph.D., on behalf of Illinois Landowners

15 Alliance, comma, NFP, dated June 25th, 2013,

16 consisting of a Table of Contents, and followed by a

17 series of questions and answers?

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   And to your knowledge, was that filed in

20 this proceeding on June 25th, 2013?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   Is this a true and correct copy of your

23 prepared written direct testimony?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   You also have in front of you a document

2 marked as ILA Exhibit 7.1 consisting of nine total

3 pages and entitled Rebuttal Testimony of Jeffrey M.

4 Gray, Ph.D., on behalf of Illinois Landowners

5 Alliance, NFP, dated September 17th, 2013,

6 consisting of a Table of Contents followed by a

7 series of questions and answers?

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   To your knowledge, was this filed in

10 this proceeding on September 17, 2013?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   Is this a true and correct copy of your

13 prepared written Rebuttal Testimony?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Do you also have in front of you a

16 document marked as ILA Exhibit 7.2, which is 11

17 total pages, entitled Rebuttal System of Jeffrey M.

18 Gray, Ph.D., on behalf of Illinois Landowners

19 Alliance, NFP, dated October 15, 2013, consisting of

20 a Table of Contents and followed by a series of

21 questions and answers?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   To your knowledge, was that filed in

24 this proceeding on October 15th of this year?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   Is this document a true and correct copy

3 of your additional prepared written Rebuttal

4 Testimony?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   Are you sponsoring any other exhibits?

7        A.   No.

8        Q.   Do you have any changes or corrections

9 that you would like to make to your prepared Direct

10 and Rebuttal Testimonies?

11        A.   No.

12        Q.   If I were to ask you the questions set

13 forth in those testimonies today, would your answers

14 be the same as they appear there?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   Do you intend for these documents to

17 comprise your --

18             JUDGE JONES:  One moment, sorry for the

19 interruption.

20             (Discussion off the record.)

21             JUDGE JONES:  All right, back on the

22 record.  We had a short off the record discussion

23 for the purposes indicated pertaining to the video

24 connection that's being addressed, we still have
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1 audio, and I believe the preference of the group is

2 to proceed with, with the audio.  Any objection to

3 that?

4             If there is not, so we will do so, and

5 you may continue with your, with your questions.

6        Q   (By Mr. Shay) Dr. Gray, restating the

7 question I started to ask before we were

8 interrupted, do you intend for these three

9 documents, those being your prepared written and two

10 sets of Rebuttal Testimonies to comprise your sworn

11 testimony in this proceeding?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   Thank you.

14             MR. SHAY:  Your Honor, I hereby move for

15 the introduction into the evidentiary record ILA

16 Exhibits 7.0, 7.1 and 7.2, and offer Dr. Gray for

17 cross examination.

18             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Are there any

19 responses to that motion?

20             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes, Judge, I have either

21 an objection or a request for clarification on one

22 item in ILA Exhibit 7.2.  In footnote 19 on Page 7,

23 testimony describes a report by the Battle Group --

24 Rattle Group, and then gives a web link to the
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1 report.  I don't object to the footnote referring to

2 the Rattle Group report, as it does there, but I

3 just would like it clarified that the intent is not

4 by providing the link to attempt to enter the

5 report, itself, into the record or to make it

6 available for citation or quotation other than the

7 description that the witness has given in the text

8 of footnote 19.

9             MR. SHAY:  I'm sorry, are you asking

10 whether we're off -- we're asking that this be part

11 of the record that the report be admitted into the

12 evidence?

13             MR. MacBRIDE:  Correct.  And further, to

14 clarify, that it would not be, it would not be

15 appropriate to quote or cite from the report other

16 than just the description that Dr. Gray has given in

17 this footnote.

18             MR. SHAY:  Well, Dr. Gray does not plan

19 to quote from the report, unless he's asked

20 questions about it on cross.  We are not asking that

21 it be admitted into the record as evidence.  If some

22 other party wishes to do so on cross, they're free

23 to request that.

24             JUDGE JONES:  Is that sufficient
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1 clarification?

2             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes, sir.

3             JUDGE JONES:  Other than that

4 clarification, are there any other responses to the

5 motion for admission of those three testimony items?

6                   (No response.)

7             JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show there

8 are not.

9             Let the record show that ILA Exhibit 7.0

10 is admitted as filed on June 25, 2013; 7.1 is

11 admitted as filed on September 17, 2013, subject to

12 the above clarification; 7.2 is admitted as filed on

13 October 15, 2013.

14               (ILA Exhibits 7.0 through 7.2

15                were admitted into evidence

16                at this time.)

17             And I believe you said, Mr. Shay, that

18 the witness is tendered for cross, is that right?

19             MR. SHAY:  Yes, Your Honor, he is.

20             JUDGE JONES:  Mr. MacBride.

21             MR. MacBRIDE:  Thank you, Judge.

22                     EXAMINATION

23 QUESTIONS BY MR. MacBRIDE

24        Q.   Dr. Gray, I think I'm just in time to
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1 say good afternoon.

2        A.   Good afternoon.

3        Q.   I'm Owen MacBride representing Rock

4 Island Clean Line in this case.

5             Sir, you received your Ph.D. degree in

6 2004, is that correct?

7        A.   Yes, sir.

8        Q.   Was your concentration in your doctorate

9 Economic Geography and International Trade?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   So therefore, what, what discipline

12 would you say your Ph.D. degree is in?

13        A.   The Social Sciences, Geography in

14 particular.  Economic geography is a subdiscipline

15 there.

16        Q.   Your current firm is named Gray, PLLC,

17 correct?

18        A.   Correct.

19        Q.   And you described Gray, PLLC, as a legal

20 and consulting practice?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   And you started Gray, PLLC, in 2010,

23 correct?

24        A.   It's been in formation since 2004 as a
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1 Michigan PLLC.  I began operating it as a Wisconsin

2 LLC in 2010.

3        Q.   Okay.  The resume that you provided in

4 response to discovery indicates that Gray, PLLC --

5 let me back up.

6             It says Professional Work Experience,

7 Gray, PLLC, 2010 to present, correct?

8        A.   Correct.

9             JUDGE JONES:  One moment.  Off the

10 record.

11             (Discussion off the record.)

12             JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Back on the

13 record.

14        Q   (By Mr. MacBride) All right.  And on your

15 resume you identify other work experiences prior to

16 2010, correct?

17             THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

18        Q.   Since you started the firm Gray, PLLC,

19 about what percent of your work would you estimate

20 has been legal work, and what percent has been

21 nonlegal consulting work?

22        A.   Up until this particular expert witness

23 engagement, I would say it all fell under the legal

24 group.  Regulatory economics is both legal and
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1 economic in nature.  But I do practice regulatory

2 economics under a legal grouping.

3        Q.   All right.  So, so prior to your

4 engagement for purposes of this case, your, your

5 engagement for clients on behalf of Gray, PLLC,

6 has -- had been as a lawyer, is that correct?

7        A.   Yes, sir.

8        Q.   Now you state that your postdoctoral

9 experience includes a position at Mamatt, that's

10 M-A-M-A-T-T, Phelps and Phillips in Washington DC,

11 correct?

12        A.   Yes, sir.

13        Q.   That's a law firm, correct?

14        A.   Yes, sir.

15        Q.   And what years were you employed at that

16 firm?

17        A.   2004 to 2006.

18        Q.   Were you employed by that firm as an

19 attorney, or in some other capacity?

20        A.   As an attorney.

21        Q.   You also state that you were employed at

22 Alliant Energy Corporation in Madison, Wisconsin,

23 correct?

24        A.   Yes, sir.
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1        Q.   And that was during the years 2010 --

2 excuse me, 2007 to 2010, correct?

3        A.   Yes, sir.

4        Q.   Were you employed at Alliant Energy as

5 an attorney, or in another capacity?

6        A.   As a regulatory attorney.

7        Q.   Now again referring to the resume that

8 was provided by ILA in response to Rock Island Data

9 Request 1.1, you indicate that subsequent to

10 receiving your doctorate, you were also employed

11 from 2006 to 2007 by the law firm of Howard and

12 Howard in Ann Arbor, Michigan, correct?

13        A.   Yes, sir.

14        Q.   Were you employed by that firm as an

15 attorney?

16        A.   Yes, sir.

17        Q.   And is there a reason you did not

18 mention that employment in your prepared testimony?

19        A.   No specific reason.  I most likely just

20 forgot; it was for a brief time period.

21        Q.   So is it fair to say that from the time

22 you received your Ph.D. degree in 2004 until you

23 started Gray, PLLC, in Wisconsin in 2010, all of

24 your employment was as an attorney and not in the
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1 subject matter of your doctoral degree?

2        A.   I -- no, I would not say that, because

3 again, my doctoral degree deals with regulatory

4 economics.  I studied the restructure of the

5 electric utility industry, and it does contain much

6 legal theory, as well as legal citation.  The Ph.D.

7 and the J.D. were pursued simultaneously, and

8 therefore, it's difficult to separate the two.

9        Q.   But all, all the positions that you held

10 at, from the time you received your doctorate to

11 when you started your consulting firm were as, as an

12 attorney, correct?

13        A.   Yes, sir.

14        Q.   You received your law degree in 2003, is

15 that correct?

16        A.   Yes, sir.

17        Q.   Prior to receiving your law degree, you

18 were employed by Enron Corporation in Houston,

19 Texas, for several years, is that correct?

20        A.   Less than two years basically.

21        Q.   And according to your resume, you were

22 employed by Enron as an associate, correct?

23        A.   Yes, sir.

24        Q.   And what were your duties and
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1 responsibilities as an associate at Enron

2 Corporation?

3        A.   The associate program was designed for

4 new MBA's, and it was an opportunity to rotate and

5 take on various assignments within the organization

6 before committing to a role within one of the

7 business units.

8        Q.   You were also employed, according to

9 your resume, for six years by a company called

10 Tri-Sen, that's T-R-I, hyphen, S-E-N, Systems, Inc.,

11 in Houston, is that correct?

12        A.   Yes, sir.

13        Q.   What is the business of Tri-Sen Systems?

14        A.   They are no longer in business, they

15 were acquired by another organization at one point,

16 but at the time they provided electronic control

17 systems for rotating equipment, including gas

18 turbines used in the power generation industry.

19 That is how I initially gained my familiarity with

20 the electric power industry.

21        Q.   You were employed by Tri-Sen Systems as

22 an International Project Manager, is that correct?

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   And what were your duties and
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1 responsibilities as an International Project

2 Manager?

3        A.   It was a business development role, as

4 well as client facing role.  I also worked

5 commercial terms for contractual agreements, some

6 client follow-up as the project engineers and other

7 technology individuals actually fulfilled the terms

8 of the contract.

9        Q.   All right.  So would it be fair to

10 characterize it as a sales marketing and customer

11 care position?

12        A.   That was one aspect of it, yes.

13        Q.   Prior to this case, you have never filed

14 testimony in any administrative agency or judicial

15 proceeding, correct?

16        A.   That is correct.

17        Q.   If you'd please refer to Lines 30 to 38

18 of your direct testimony.  And you there state that

19 your testimony:  "Is intended to address the

20 requirement in Section 8-406 of the Illinois Public

21 Utilities Act that a proposed project is either

22 necessary to provide adequate, reliable and

23 efficient service to its customers and is the least

24 cost means of satisfying the service needs of its
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1 customers, or that the proposed construction will

2 promote the development of an effectively

3 competitive electricity market that operates

4 efficiently, is equitable to all customers, and is

5 the least cost means of satisfying those

6 objectives."

7             Is that correct?

8        A.   That is partly correct, you didn't state

9 the portion of that several sentences in quotations

10 prior to the that will.  Yes.

11        Q.   Okay.  Now you've, in that part of your

12 testimony you've described, in fact, quoted, a

13 provision of Section 8-406 (b) of the Public

14 Utilities Act, is that correct?

15        A.   Yes, sir.

16        Q.   And it's your understanding that what is

17 stated in that quotation are alternative criterion?

18        A.   The word "or" separates those two

19 criterion; yes, sir.

20        Q.   And is it correct to say that your

21 testimony is not intended to address whether or not

22 the -- whether or not the Rock Island project meets

23 any other requirements for a certificate under

24 Section 8-406 or an order under Section 8-503 of the
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1 Public Utilities Act, other than the criteria that

2 you referred to at Lines 30 to 38 of your direct

3 testimony?

4        A.   Yes, sir.

5        Q.   Is it correct that you were retained by

6 ILA for purposes of this case on or about April

7 19th, 2013?

8        A.   I believe I have the Data Request for

9 the response that I provided to you and --

10        Q.   I refer you to Data Request 2.4.

11        A.   Thank you, yes, that's April 19th, 2013.

12        Q.   All right.  And you began preparation of

13 your direct testimony on or about May 23, 2013,

14 correct?

15        A.   That is correct.

16        Q.   And your testimony, your prepared direct

17 testimony was filed on June 25, 2013, correct?

18        A.   That's correct.

19        Q.   Do you agree with the description of the

20 Rock Island Project as a Merchant Transmission

21 Project?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Would you agree that a Merchant

24 Transmission Project is a project in which the owner
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1 assumes the full market risk of the cost of

2 constructing the proposed transmission project?

3        A.   That is one definition; I would agree

4 with the definition, yes.

5        Q.   Would you agree that the owner of a

6 Merchant Transmission Project must also pay all the

7 costs of operating and maintaining the transmission

8 line?

9        A.   Again, within that definition of the

10 transmission developing project, yes.

11        Q.   Would you agree that a Merchant

12 Transmission Project, therefore, is one for which

13 the owner does not seek to allocate the cost of the

14 project to load through the cost allocation

15 procedures of an applicable regional transmission

16 organization or organizations?

17        A.   Yes, sir.

18             JUDGE JONES:  Off the record one moment.

19             (Discussion off the record.)

20             JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Mr.

21 MacBride.

22        Q   (By Mr. MacBride) And with respect to the

23 Rock Island Clean Line, the potentially applicable

24 regional transmission organizations are PJM and
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1 MISO?

2             THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

3             MR. MacBRIDE:  And Ms. Reporter, do you

4 understand that MISO is M-I-S-O?

5             THE REPORTER:  Thank you.

6        Q   (By Mr. MacBride) Do you agree that PJM

7 and MISO do not evaluate the need for a transmission

8 project that is to be funded by its owners and

9 customers, and for which the project owner does not

10 seek cost allocation treatment?

11        A.   Within MISO, a merchant transmission

12 developer has the option of presenting his project

13 for review through the MTEP.  That review would not

14 get into cost allocation issues under MTEP.  But it

15 would be evaluated.  Within PJM, no, they do not

16 evaluate merchant transmission projects through the

17 RTEP.

18        Q.   Now where a transmission project does

19 request and obtain cost allocation or cost recovery

20 treatment from PJM or MISO, the costs of the project

21 are allocated to and recovered from load serving

22 entities and their customers within that RTO's

23 footprint, correct?

24        A.   Yes, sir.
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1        Q.   Referring you to Pages 4 and 5 of your

2 direct testimony, you there discuss the process by

3 which MISO accepts transmission projects as MISO

4 Multivalue Projects, correct?

5        A.   Yes, sir.

6        Q.   All right.  And I believe you've also

7 discussed the process by which MISO accepts

8 transmission projects as Multivalue Projects in your

9 Rebuttal Testimony with Mr. Goggin, is that correct?

10        A.   Yes, sir.

11        Q.   The Rock Island Transmission Project is

12 proposed to start in the MISO RTO Region and end in

13 the PJM RTO Region, correct?

14        A.   Within those footprints, which could

15 also be called a region, yes.

16        Q.   And the Rock Island Project will be

17 interconnected into the PJM grid at the Collins

18 Substation, is that correct?

19        A.   Yes, sir.

20        Q.   In order for a transmission project to

21 be built within or across the MISO footprint, does

22 the project have to be determined by MISO to be a

23 MISO Multivalue Project?

24        A.   No.
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1        Q.   Do you agree that the cost of the

2 transmission project that MISO has approved as a

3 MISO Multivalue Project are allocated to and

4 recovered from retail rate payors throughout the

5 MISO region?

6        A.   Ultimately there is a FERC

7 jurisdictional pass-through that utilities within

8 pass through to their regional rate payors, yes.

9        Q.   And do you know what percentage of the

10 costs of the MISO Multivalue Projects will be

11 allocated to and recovered from electricity

12 customers in Illinois?

13        A.   I do not.

14        Q.   Do all of the MISO Multivalue Projects

15 interconnect directly into the existing MISO

16 Transmission System?

17        A.   They will interconnect with the MISO

18 Transmission System, yes.

19        Q.   Now there is a recently approved set of

20 MISO Multivalue Projects, some of which are the

21 subject matter of an Ameren Transmission Company

22 case, are you familiar with that?

23        A.   Briefly.  Somewhat, yes.

24        Q.   Okay.  And is it your understanding that
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1 the, one of the purposes of this recently approved

2 set of MISO Multivalue Projects is to meet state

3 renewal portfolio standard requirements in the MISO

4 footprint?

5        A.   On a portfolio basis, yes, Bill 17

6 projects, that would be one of the objectives.

7        Q.   Now you contend in your testimony that

8 the MISO Multivalue Projects are a, an alternative

9 to the Rock Island Project, correct?

10        A.   Yes, sir.

11        Q.   All right.  So is it, therefore, correct

12 to state that you believe that the Rock Island

13 Project could be used to meet State Renewable

14 Portfolio Standard Requirements in the MISO

15 footprint?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   Can the renewable energy credits

18 associated with the renewable energy that the Rock

19 Island Project would deliver into the PJM grid in

20 Illinois be used by Illinois -- by utilities and

21 alternative retail electric suppliers serving

22 customers in the MISO footprint of Illinois to

23 satisfy their RPS requirements?

24        A.   My understanding of the Illinois RPS is
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1 that either recs originated in MISO or recs

2 originated in PJM can be used by any RISA or utility

3 Illinois to satisfy RPS requirements.

4        Q.   Geographically do you know where the

5 dividing line between the PJM footprint and the MISO

6 footprint is in Illinois?  At least approximately?

7        A.   It's in the northeast quadrant roughly

8 of the state.

9        Q.   All right.  It being what?

10        A.   The seam between the two RTO's.

11        Q.   Do you know what part of the preferred

12 route of the Rock Island Transmission Line would be

13 located in the MISO region and what part in the PJM

14 region?

15        A.   The majority of it would be located in

16 the MISO footprint.

17        Q.   All right.  Could you refer to Page 6 of

18 your direct testimony, please?

19             And on Page 6 of your direct testimony,

20 you discuss the PJM Regional Transmission Expansion

21 Plan Process, is that correct?

22        A.   Yes, sir.

23        Q.   An that's sometimes referred to as RTEP

24 for short?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   And R-T-E-P, all caps.

3             And on Lines 115 to 119 of your direct

4 testimony where you discuss the PJM RTEP process,

5 what you are there describing is the process by

6 which transmission projects are included in the PJM

7 RTEP in order to have their costs recovered from

8 customers through the cost allocation projects,

9 correct?

10        A.   In the case of PJM, yes.

11        Q.   Can a transmission project be

12 interconnected to the PJM grid without being adopted

13 by PJM for inclusion in the RTEP using the process

14 you describe at Lines 115 to 116?

15             MR. SHAY:  I'm sorry, could we have that

16 read back?  I'm not sure it was clear.

17             JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Reporter, can you read

18 that back?

19             MR. MacBRIDE:  I can repeat the

20 question.

21        Q   (By Mr. MacBride) Can a transmission

22 project be interconnected to the PJM grid without

23 being adopted by PJM for inclusion in the RTEP

24 through the process you described at Lines 115 to
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1 116?

2             THE WITNESS:  I'll make a distinction

3 between the Regional Transmission Expansion Plan and

4 the RTEP model.  The RTEP model that is used for

5 planning purposes would include generators that are

6 interconnected to the system, it would also include

7 merchant transmission facilities that are

8 interconnected to the system.  So would be reflected

9 at some point in the model.  But in terms of

10 regional planning, in other words, determining what

11 is best for the region, a Merchant Transmission

12 Project would not be vetted in that way.

13             JUDGE JONES:  One moment.

14             (Discussion off the record.)

15        Q   (By Mr. MacBride) All right.  Dr. Gray,

16 does your file testimony in this case discuss or

17 critique the economic studies conducted and

18 presented by Rock Island witness Mr. Moland in this

19 case?

20        A.   No.

21        Q.   Does your file testimony in this case

22 discuss or critique the economic studies presented

23 by staff witness Mr. Zuraski in this case?

24        A.   I believe I reference staff witness
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1 Zuraski's testimony in my cross for BOMA.  I

2 critiqued it to the extent that he looked at three

3 different scenarios, and I felt that one of his

4 scenarios was rather limiting.

5        Q.   All right.  And that scenario was his

6 scenario in which new wind farms are located in the

7 resource area, but with no Rock Island Project

8 connecting them to Illinois, correct?

9        A.   Yes, sir.

10        Q.   Does your file testimony in this case

11 discuss or critique the economic studies presented

12 by Rock Island witness Mr. Berry in response to Mr.

13 Zuraski?

14        A.   No.

15        Q.   If I could refer you to Exhibit 7.2,

16 please.  Lines 39 through 40 and you state there,

17 quote:  "Section 8-406(b)1 of the Act requires a

18 demonstration of customer need."

19             Do you see that?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Are you there referring to what has been

22 referred to as the first alternative criterion under

23 Section 8-406(b)1?

24        A.   The text that proceeds the word "or,"
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1 yes.

2        Q.   Could I ask you to look now back at your

3 direct at Lines 277 to 288, and you there discuss

4 decommissioning costs, correct?

5        A.   Yes, sir.

6        Q.   Have you presented in this case any

7 analysis of whether the scrap value and salvage

8 value of the Rock Island transmission line would be

9 sufficient to pay for the cost of dismantling and

10 moving the transmission line, should that be

11 necessary?

12        A.   No, but I don't see that as relevant.

13        Q.   Are you aware of any high voltage

14 transmission lines that have been constructed but

15 did not operate, or that ceased operation, and whose

16 structures have not been removed?

17        A.   No.

18        Q.   All right.  Again referring you to

19 Exhibit 7.2, Lines 93 to 94?

20             MR. SHAY:  I'm sorry, what was that

21 reference?

22             MR. MacBRIDE:  93 to 94.

23        Q   (By Mr. MacBride) And you there state:

24 "Mr. Berry criticizes me for not speculating about



658

1 the future land use impacts of alternatives to the

2 Rock Island Project."

3             Is that correct?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   And you cite in your footnote to Lines

6 1536 to 42 of Mr. Berry's Exhibit 10.14, correct?

7        A.   Yes, sir.

8        Q.   Would you have a copy of that portion of

9 Mr. Berry's testimony with you?

10        A.   I do not.

11        Q.   All right.  Let me, let me just read

12 from Lines 1536 to 42 and then ask you a question.

13 Mr. Berry states at those lines:  "Building over

14 4000 megawatts of wind farms in Illinois, together

15 with building out the Illinois Transmission Network

16 to accommodate these new wind farms, would have a

17 substantial land use impact in Illinois.  Commission

18 Staff Witness Mr. Zuraski notes as much in his

19 testimony.  Dr. Gray's direct testimony does not

20 explain how it is possible to produce low cost

21 renewable energy in order to comply with Illinois

22 other state RPS with a lesser impact on Illinois

23 land use."

24             Is, is that the criticism by Mr. Berry
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1 that you were intending to respond to at Lines 93 to

2 94 of --

3        A.   Yes, sir.

4        Q.   Do you agree that building over 4000

5 megawatts of new wind farms in Illinois would have

6 substantial land use impacts in Illinois?

7        A.   Yes, sir.

8        Q.   Is it your understanding that when a new

9 wind farm is built -- is built, it has to have a

10 transmission connection to the existing transmission

11 system?

12        A.   There are direct connection locally or

13 it's high lined, yes, sir.

14        Q.   And those connection requirements often

15 entail building new transmission facilities that may

16 be several miles long to connect the new wind farm

17 to the existing grid?

18        A.   That would be the tile line and then the

19 system upgrades.

20        Q.   Now at Lines 94 to 96 of Exhibit 7.2,

21 you go on to say:  "As future transmission projects

22 are vetted for inclusion in future MBP portfolios,

23 stakeholders will have an opportunity to examine

24 land use impacts;" correct?



660

1        A.   Yes, sir.

2        Q.   And you have not conducted a review of

3 past MISO transmission expansion planning activity

4 to examine how and when MISO stakeholders have

5 accounted for land use impacts of individual

6 projects, have you?

7        A.   I'll ask for clarification, if you don't

8 mind.  You said MISO stakeholders, that is a, a

9 defined term in MISO with a capital S.  There's a

10 specific connotation there that's not the

11 connotation that I intended to invoke here.

12        Q.   Can I refer you to the, if you have it,

13 ILA's response to Rock Island Data Request 6.1?

14        A.   Sure.

15        Q.   Okay.  And in the response to Part B of

16 Data Request 6.1 -- well, let me back up.

17             Did you assist in preparing this

18 response?

19        A.   Yes, I did.

20        Q.   All right.  In response to Part B of

21 this question, the answer states:  "Dr. Gray has not

22 conducted a review of past MTEP or RTEP activity to

23 examine specifically how and when MISO or PJM

24 stakeholders in each of those ISO slash RTO's have
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1 accounted for the land use impacts of individual

2 projects;" correct?

3        A.   Correct.

4        Q.   And in that response "stakeholders" is

5 not capitalized, correct?

6        A.   Correct, because it's MISO and PJM; PJM

7 doesn't have a defined term for it.

8        Q.   So in any event, Dr. Gray, the MISO and

9 PJM regional planning processes would take into

10 account at most the land use impacts of proposed

11 transmission projects; do you agree with that?

12        A.   Repeat the question.

13        Q.   The MISO and PJM planning processes

14 would take into account at most the land use impacts

15 of the proposed transmission projects.

16        A.   Those planning processes don't take into

17 account land use impacts, no.

18        Q.   Of anything?

19        A.   They won't do that because, again, these

20 are FERC jurisdictional regional transmissional

21 organizations.  They will stay within what is within

22 the FERCs jurisdiction.  Citing issues have been

23 left to the states.

24        Q.   Thank you, Doctor, that's all the
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1 questions we have.

2             JUDGE JONES:  Any redirect?

3             MR. SHAY:  There might be, yes, I

4 suspect it will be rather short, so I'd suggest if

5 we get that done now before lunch, it's probably

6 best, but I would like five minutes with the

7 witness, if I could.

8             JUDGE JONES:  Any objection to that

9 procedural proposal?

10             MR. MacBRIDE:  No, sir.

11             JUDGE JONES:  All right.  We hereby

12 break for five minutes.

13                       (Recess)

14             JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Mr.

15 Shay, any redirect?

16             MR. SHAY:  Yes, Your Honor, thank you.

17                     EXAMINATION

18 QUESTIONS BY MR. SHAY

19        Q.   Dr. Gray, during your cross by Mr.

20 MacBride, you were asked some questions about your

21 testimony on decommissioning on Lines 277 and

22 thereafter in your direct testimony; do you recall

23 that?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   And were you asked whether you had done

2 any analysis -- I will paraphrase it, because I

3 don't have the exact words in front of me, but

4 conduct:  Have you conducted any analysis having to

5 do with recovery values for scrap and so forth?

6             Do you recall that?

7        A.   Yes.

8        Q.   And was your answer:  No, but that is

9 not relevant?

10        A.   Something to that effect.

11        Q.   Okay.  Why is that not relevant?

12        A.   Two reasons.  First, commodity prices

13 are volatile.  We can try to do a calculation based

14 on historic volatilities, but it's a difficult,

15 difficult thing to estimate going forward,

16 especially over the 40 or 50-year life of a

17 transmission line.

18             But more importantly, I drew an analogy

19 in my direct testimony to wind farm easements and

20 how they would include financial assurances, often

21 escrowed accounts or escrowed agreements that set

22 aside funds for land reclamation after the say

23 25-year life span of a wind turbine ends.  That

24 money is set aside for that specific purpose.  If
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1 the transmission owner, whether it's Rock Island,

2 national grid or some successor, fails, presumably

3 those assets, including the metal, scrap metal,

4 would be part of an estate and the competitors would

5 each have an opportunity to pick over those remains.

6 There would be no financial assurance for land

7 owners that funds from the sale of that scrap

8 material would actually go to land reclamation, not

9 saying that it might say something to that effect in

10 an easement agreement.  We would need more, the

11 Illinois landowners would need more than that,

12 Illinois Landowners Alliance members and other land

13 owners would need more than that, I believe, to feel

14 comfortable.

15        Q.   Well, like Mr. MacBride, I have just one

16 more question following the adjustment.  Dr. Gray,

17 do you remember a question from Mr. MacBride having

18 to do with your knowledge of whether any high

19 voltage transmission lines have ceased operations

20 and not been removed?

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   Do you recall that?  And your answer was

23 no?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   Your answer was no, correct?  Correct

2 that your answer was no?

3        A.   My answer was no, however --

4        Q.   Okay.

5        A.   -- it's important to recognize that

6 historically transmission has been developed

7 pursuant to the regulatory compact whereby in

8 exchange for a rate of return, specified either by

9 the FERC or the old vertical utility model by state

10 commission, certain expectations come along with

11 that.  So if a transmission line were to somehow

12 become not used and useful, it would be removed

13 pursuant to whatever utility owns it and the

14 regulatory compact with the regulatory bodies, and

15 it all falls within that, that general regulatory

16 scheme.

17             In the case of Rock Island, it's a

18 merchant transmission line, it's, it's not part of

19 that traditional regulatory compact, it's, we can't

20 really know exactly what will happen decades down

21 the line when the transmission project is no longer

22 used useful.  Assuming that it ever is used useful.

23 So my answer would be because it's a merchant

24 transmission line, we don't know.  It's a new
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1 business model, and to try to draw a comparison

2 between these merchant transmission projects and

3 what would be historical transmission lines is

4 inapplicable, it's inappropriate.

5        Q.   Okay, thank you.  I have no further

6 questions.

7             JUDGE JONES:  Any recross.

8             MR. MacBRIDE:  No, sir.

9             JUDGE JONES:  All right, thank you, sir.

10 Off the record.

11            (Discussion off the record.)

12             JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record, we

13 hereby break for lunch until 1:45.  Thank you.

14                    (Lunch Recess)

15             JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  From

16 the looks of the schedule, it appears that we're to

17 Commission Staff witnesses to be put on the stand.

18 Who is the first of those?

19             MS. CARDONI:  Judge, at this time Staff

20 would call Mr. Zuraski to the stand.

21                   RICHARD ZURASKI,

22 of lawful age, having been first duly sworn to

23 testify the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

24 the truth in the case aforesaid, deposes and says in
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1 reply to oral interrogatories propounded as follows,

2 to-wit:

3                     EXAMINATION

4 QUESTIONS BY MS. CARDONI

5        Q.   Could you please state your name and

6 spell your last name for the record?

7        A.   Richard J. Zuraski, Z-U-R-A-S-K-I.

8        Q.   And who is your employer, and what is

9 your business address?

10        A.   Illinois Commerce Commission, 527 West

11 Capitol Avenue, 62701.

12        Q.   Did you prepare written exhibits for

13 submittal in this proceeding?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   And do you have before you a document

16 which has been marked as Staff Exhibit 3.0,

17 consisting of a Cover Page, Table of Contents, 46

18 pages of testimony, as well as Exhibit 3.1 that has

19 been identified as your Direct Testimony?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   Did you prepare this document?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Do you also have before you a document

24 identified as ICC Staff Exhibit 6.0 consisting of a
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1 Cover Page, Table of Contents, seven pages of

2 testimony, and is entitled your Rebuttal Testimony?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   Did you prepare this document?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   Do you have any corrections to make to

7 Exhibits 3.0 or 6.0?

8        A.   No.

9        Q.   Is the information contained in 3.0 or

10 6.0 true and correct, to the best of your knowledge?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   And if I were to ask you the same

13 questions today in Exhibits 3.0 and 6.0, would your

14 answers remain the same?

15        A.   Yes.

16             MS. CARDONI:  Your Honor, at this time I

17 move for admission into evidence as what has been

18 marked as ICC Staff Exhibit 3.0, 3.1 and 6.0, and I

19 note for the record that those were filed on eDocket

20 on June 25th, 2013, and October 15th, 2013.

21             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Any responses

22 to, to that motion?

23             MR. RIPPIE:  No objection, Your Honor.

24             JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show that
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1 the evidentiary items as sponsored by Mr. Zuraski

2 are admitted into the evidentiary record, ICC Staff

3 Exhibits 3.0 and 3.1 are admitted as filed on

4 eDocket on June 25, 2013; 6.0 is admitted into the

5 evidentiary record as filed on eDocket on October

6 15, 2013.

7               (Staff Exhibits 3.0, 3.1 and 6.0

8                were admitted into evidence

9                at this time.)

10             MS. CARDONI:  Thank you.

11             JUDGE JONES:  It appears there are

12 several parties whose counsel will be conducting

13 some cross examination of this witness.  Who would

14 like to start?  Mr. Rippie?

15             MR. RIPPIE:  I'm sure there's some

16 comment about the foolish going before the brave

17 but ...

18                     EXAMINATION

19 QUESTIONS BY MR. RIPPIE

20        Q.   Good afternoon, Dr. Zuraski, how are you

21 today?

22        A.   I'm fine.  I'm not sure if I'm the

23 foolish or the brave.

24        Q.   No, I meant you as the brave, I assure
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1 you.

2             Let's begin at the end.  If you could

3 look at the last and second to last page of your

4 rebuttal testimony, Exhibit 6.0, please.  With the Q

5 beginning on Line 154.

6        A.   Okay.

7        Q.   And if you could take a moment to glance

8 at it and read it over to yourself.

9           (Witness peruses document.)

10        A.   I've seen it.

11        Q.   Okay.  Now would it be fair to summarize

12 that question and answer as your response to a point

13 that was being made about the tax deductibility of

14 transmission rates paid by generator customers as

15 explained by Mr. Berry in his rebuttal?

16        A.   Yes.

17        Q.   Do you understand that the generators in

18 Mr. Berry's response who would be utilizing the

19 transmission line would be market sellers?

20        A.   Yes.

21        Q.   So that the rate at which they would

22 sell their energy would be a function of the supply

23 and demand curves in the marketplace, not of their

24 particular costs, unless they happened to be the
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1 marginal seller?

2        A.   Yes.

3        Q.   So is there any reason to suspect that

4 the price of energy is going to change at all simply

5 because a given group of market sellers can deduct a

6 certain type of expense on their tax return?

7        A.   Would you repeat that, please?

8        Q.   Sure.  Is there any reason to believe

9 that the market clearing price of energy is going to

10 change at all simply because a certain group of

11 sellers can deduct this transmission expense on

12 their tax return?

13        A.   No, I have no reason to believe that.

14        Q.   Okay.  Let's go back to your direct

15 testimony then.

16             Now as I understand it, the entire

17 thrust of your direct testimony is a presentation of

18 a series of analyses that compare a view of the

19 world where the Rock Island Project is built with a

20 series of views of the world where it is not, is

21 that a --

22        A.   Yeah.

23        Q.   -- fair, very high level summary?

24        A.   It is.
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1        Q.   And in this analysis, obviously the,

2 what you call Case A, I believe, is where the

3 project is built and electricity is being delivered

4 over the project and injected into the PJM operated

5 Regional Transmission System at a point at or near

6 Com-Ed's Collins station.  Com-Ed's Collins

7 Substation.

8        A.   Yes.

9        Q.   Okay.  And is it correct that you

10 determined the nature of that injection based on

11 information that was provided by Rock Island, the

12 Petitioner?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   If we look at your testimony at Page 24,

15 Lines 482 through 485, is that a sentence that

16 accurately sums up the nature of the power generated

17 and delivered that you were using in the Rock Island

18 is built case?

19        A.   You're referring to the megawatt hours,

20 or the megawatts, or --

21        Q.   I'm referring to all three.  That, that

22 basically, as appropriate, you treated this project

23 as something that would result in approximately 15

24 million megawatt hours per year being injected, and
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1 that that was going to be generated by wind farms

2 with a, an approximately 40 percent capacity factor,

3 and thus, generators, turbine generators with a name

4 plate rating of approximately 4281 megawatts.

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   Could you summarize for us the

7 alternative cases that you considered?  The no RI

8 cases?

9        A.   The only one that I looked at in, in I

10 guess I would say any depth would be one in which

11 the transmission, the new transmission line is not

12 built, and that the wind farms would be put in place

13 instead in a location with a lower capacity factor

14 expected.  I used basically Illinois as an example

15 of where that might be, and that they would generate

16 the same megawatt hours per year as what's assumed

17 under the Case A with the Rock Island Line.

18        Q.   Now --

19        A.   The other, the other case was one that I

20 didn't feel that I had enough information to present

21 in the same way, I guess you would say, and that was

22 where the line was not built, but you were able to

23 put the same type of wind farms in the high capacity

24 factor area, a 40 percent capacity factor area, but
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1 you wouldn't -- excuse me.  But you wouldn't have

2 the additional transmission line, Rock Island

3 Transmission Line built.  I wasn't able to determine

4 if that was altogether feasible or not, given lack

5 of information about existing transmission

6 constraints.

7        Q.   Picking up on the end of your answer

8 first, would you agree that your review of all the

9 materials submitted by the Applicant, Rock Island,

10 did not reveal any alternative transmission case at

11 all?

12        A.   I -- I think that's accurate.

13        Q.   I mean they, there were slight route

14 variations, but it was a plus/minus 600 kV DC line

15 with the same electrical design, and same

16 termination points, and there was no other

17 transmission alternative presented, was there?

18        A.   Yeah; my only hesitation is they didn't

19 talk about, for example, the alternative multivalue

20 projects and MISO that had been brought up by

21 another witness, but it wasn't presented as an

22 alternative to the Rock Island proposal.

23        Q.   And a Multivalue Project alternative of

24 that nature is not what's before the Commission now,
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1 is it?

2        A.   Correct, it is not.

3        Q.   And is it also true that there was no

4 examination in the record of an alternative where

5 not only the 400 -- 4,281 megawatts of wind was

6 constructed in the Com-Ed area, but also an

7 additional amount of generation was constructed with

8 the $2 billion that wouldn't be spent on the

9 transmission line.

10        A.   Would you try that again, please?

11        Q.   Sure.  I'll try to break the question

12 up.

13        A.   Good.

14        Q.   Okay.  You indicated that something you

15 considered was, in essence, picking up, picking up

16 the wind farms and moving them to Illinois, with the

17 understanding that they would operate at a different

18 capacity factor as a function of presumably the wind

19 behaving in a different way in this part of the

20 world as in points west.

21        A.   Right.

22        Q.   Okay.

23        A.   I would need different -- would it be

24 different capacity, different amount of capacity,
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1 able to produce the same megawatt hours.  Because of

2 the capacity factor difference.

3        Q.   I understand.  So my question is --

4 well, maybe I don't understand.

5             So you looked at the alternative of

6 putting into Illinois wind with greater than a 4281

7 megawatt name plate rating, but instead having

8 installed in Illinois wind that would produce the

9 same number of megawatt hours of output over the

10 steady period.

11        A.   Correct, a greater number of megawatts

12 to produce the same megawatt hours.

13        Q.   Okay, thank you.  Now does your -- do

14 any of your studies address a sensitivity in which

15 the generation utilizing the transmission line is

16 not all wind?

17        A.   No.

18        Q.   Would you agree that a scenario in which

19 the generation using the transmission line was 40

20 percent non-wind would produce a very different

21 result in your study?  I'm not asking you what that

22 result is, presumably you don't know, but it would

23 make a substantial difference, wouldn't it?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   Did you -- is it also true that your

2 studies didn't analyze the circumstance where the

3 deliverable energy from those generators was

4 substantially less than 4000 megawatts?

5        A.   Correct.

6        Q.   With the possible exception of the recs,

7 right?

8        A.   No, what I was going to say is the, it,

9 I -- the way in which it was set up is that really,

10 I really didn't even consider the deliverability of

11 megawatts, it was just -- but I did assume a

12 constant quantity of -- not constant, but over the,

13 there was no variation in the number of megawatt

14 hours per year.  So all the scenarios have the same

15 megawatt hours per year.

16        Q.   And how many --

17        A.   And the amount of megawatts that could

18 be utilized at any particular time was not

19 considered one way or another.

20        Q.   Fair enough.  So let me rephrase the

21 question then.

22             To the extent that a limitation on

23 energy deliverability reduced the total number of

24 megawatt hours over the course of the year, that was
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1 not considered in your study.

2        A.   Correct.

3        Q.   And as an expert in this area, would you

4 agree with me that the question of how much firm

5 transmission is available to a line such as this

6 line interconnecting with the PJM system is a

7 different question from how much energy is

8 deliverable by particular generators subsequently

9 requesting transmission service?

10        A.   That it's a different question?  I guess

11 it's a different question, yeah.

12        Q.   Is -- would you agree with my statement,

13 that those are two different questions?

14        A.   Yeah, they're two different questions.

15        Q.   And they often have two different

16 answers.

17        A.   I guess they would have two different

18 answers.

19        Q.   Okay.

20        A.   I'm not entirely following the, how we

21 even compare these two things.  Nevermind, go on.

22        Q.   Well, because -- let me take a

23 hypothetical.  If you have Line A that

24 interconnects -- well, let's not go with Line A,
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1 let's strike that.

2             If you have Line R that interconnects

3 with PJM, and at its interconnection when it, when

4 it finally is constructed is a allowed a thousand

5 megawatts of injection rights, that does not mean

6 that any generator taking transmission service that

7 involves the use of that line can get a thousand

8 megawatts delivered into the market, does it?

9        A.   I don't know.

10        Q.   It is your understanding, though, that

11 this is being proposed to the Commission as a

12 merchant line, is that correct?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   And a merchant line is a line that is

15 being financed by the developer, not being financed

16 by payments made by customers pursuant to the

17 cost -- normal transmission cost to allocation

18 process?

19        A.   I think that's the, that's the model,

20 that's the expectation I guess, that policy makers

21 have when they talk about this, this type of

22 transmission company.

23        Q.   And would you agree with me also that

24 that is the, that is the model under which the
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1 Commission Staff reviewed this project?

2             MS. CARDONI:  I'm going to object and

3 ask Mr. Rippie to clarify what he means by

4 Commission Staff.

5             MR. RIPPIE:  Sure; in fact, I'll

6 withdraw the question.

7        Q   (By Mr. Rippie) Let me refer you to, if I

8 could, Page 6 of your direct testimony, Lines 126 to

9 130.  And there you express, do you not, a tentative

10 view about equitability to customers.

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   And would you agree with me that one of

13 the bases of reaching an opinion about equitability

14 to customers is the understanding that customers

15 aren't going to end up paying for this line in any

16 manner through rates.

17        A.   I can't exactly agree with that.  I --

18 one way or another I think the costs of this are

19 going to get included in customers' rates.  It's not

20 necessarily going to be that it's, it's through

21 including the cost of this transmission line into a

22 revenue requirement model with a rate case

23 proceeding or something along those lines, but that

24 it's quite possible that Commonwealth Edison will
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1 buy -- for example, Commonwealth Edison will buy

2 renewable energy certificates from people utilizing

3 this line who are paying for that transmission, and

4 that it, the costs may very well be recoverable

5 through that circuitous route.

6        Q.   In the same way that sales tax, even

7 though nominally is, the incidence nominally lies in

8 the seller, it eventually finds its way to the

9 customers through the workings of the market.

10        A.   Exactly.

11        Q.   Okay.  I'll make my question more

12 precise.

13             Is part of your customer equitability

14 conclusion the fact that if customers pay for it,

15 they will pay for it in that general market-based

16 way as opposed to having it assigned to them in a

17 rate case.

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   And is that conclusion and that view

20 part of the basis on which you, as the staff

21 economist, reviewed this line and made the

22 recommendations that you do to the Commission?

23        A.   I didn't give a whole lot of thought to

24 that aspect of this, the, this equitable to



682

1 customers or the nature of it being a merchant

2 transmission line.  I don't think most of my

3 testimony is concerned with that aspect of it.

4        Q.   Okay.  And is that because in the end

5 you conclude that through the market mechanism you

6 discussed earlier, customers in the end pay?

7        A.   Right.  That, or I guess I would

8 rephrase it a little bit, I would say that I tried

9 to look at this -- one of the things I tried to look

10 at was whether it appeared as if this was going to

11 be financially successful enough that that's the

12 only way they would pay is through that type of

13 mechanism, as opposed to a more of a socialized type

14 of cost recovery mechanism outside of this merchant

15 transmission model.

16        Q.   I think I just have a couple more

17 questions.  Just two or three more questions on the

18 merchant transmission model.

19             As you understand this model as put

20 forward by the Applicant, the customers of the line

21 are the generators to, to which the line -- strike

22 that, please -- are the generators that use the

23 line, the shippers, if you will, the generators who

24 put power on the line in order to deliver it to the
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1 Com-Ed zone.

2        A.   I wouldn't necessarily restrict it to

3 the generators, because I guess I could foresee a

4 contract being set up where whoever they're selling

5 the electricity to becomes the customer of the

6 transmission company, but I would, I suspect that

7 what you just described would be more probable.

8        Q.   Because for a customer to sign a --

9 strike that.

10             Is the reason that what I described more

11 probable is because -- nevermind, that's all I have.

12 Thank you.

13             JUDGE JONES:  Who's -- who's next?

14             MR. SHAY:  According to the sheet, ILA

15 is.

16             JUDGE JONES:  Mr. Shay.

17             MR. SHAY:  Your Honor, could I have just

18 one moment, please, before we start?  We don't have

19 to recess or anything, I just need to go check

20 something, I apologize.

21             JUDGE JONES:  All right, Mr. Shay.

22                     EXAMINATION

23 QUESTIONS BY MR. SHAY

24        Q.   Mr. Zuraski, good afternoon, my name is



684

1 Bill Shay, I'm one of the attorneys for the Illinois

2 Landowners Alliance.  I just have a few questions on

3 your rebuttal testimony.

4        A.   Okay.

5        Q.   And you state in there in response to

6 testimony of Mr. Berry, you make certain comments

7 about the assurances that he describes concerning

8 the possibility of a project to become a cost

9 allocated rate-based project?

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   In fact, don't you cite Mr. Berry's

12 specific proposed language in his rebuttal, Exhibit

13 10.14, whereby he offers that before recovering any

14 costs of the project from Illinois rate payors

15 through regional cost allocation, that Rock Island

16 would first come back and seek to obtain the

17 Commission's permission in a new proceeding; is that

18 correct?

19        A.   I don't re-- I don't recall exactly if

20 I -- are you saying that I included that in the, in

21 my testimony, or just a citation referencing that

22 someplace?

23        Q.   That you were --

24        A.   What page are you on?
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1        Q.   That you were citing his proposed

2 language that was contained in his testimony

3 offering that assurance.

4        A.   That sounds, that sounds right.

5        Q.   Okay.  And do you, do you recall that

6 then subsequently in his surrebuttal testimony Mr.

7 Berry proposed a slight modification of that

8 language that offered that assurance?  Specifically

9 I think it was his Exhibit 10.26 at Lines 487 to

10 497.

11        A.   I do not recall.

12        Q.   Okay.  Would you, would you accept that

13 he did make a slight modification, subject to your

14 checking, to that specific language that he had

15 first proposed in his rebuttal?

16        A.   Yes.

17             MR. SHAY:  I think -- I'd like to be

18 able to show that specific language to the witness,

19 Your Honor, if I may have a moment, I can get ahold

20 of it.

21             Permission to approach the witness, Your

22 Honor.

23             JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

24             MR. SHAY:  Let the record show I'm
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1 approaching the witness and showing him at Page 21

2 of Rock Island Exhibit 10.26, which is the

3 surrebuttal of Mr. Berry, the specific language that

4 Mr. Berry is offering as modified concerning the

5 assurances we were just discussing.

6        Q   (By Mr. Shay) Take a moment to read that.

7             MS. CARDONI:  Can you also provide the

8 line number, Mr. Shay?

9             MR. SHAY:  I think it's 48 -- it's the

10 single spaced language starting at 487.

11             MR. MacBRIDE:  And let the record

12 reflect Mr. Shay had to resort to a paper copy for

13 that.

14             THE WITNESS:  All right, so what line?

15        Q   (By Mr. Shay) 487 starting at...

16        A.   And what is the question?

17        Q.   I just would like you to familiarize

18 yourself with that passage.

19             (Witness peruses document.)

20        A.   Okay.

21        Q.   Got that?

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   Unless Mr. Rippie objects, I'll let you

24 keep that in front of you while I ask you a couple
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1 questions.

2        A.   Okay.

3        Q.   Okay, do you -- have you familiarized

4 yourself with the proposal as he's modified it

5 there?

6        A.   Yes.

7        Q.   Okay.  Now even with that modification,

8 under Mr. Berry's proposal, do you understand that

9 Rock Island would have the right to come back to the

10 ICC and request recovery of the project costs from

11 Illinois retail rate payors through transmission

12 service charges that would be imposed upon Illinois

13 retail electric suppliers?

14        A.   Yes.

15        Q.   Does Mr. Berry provide a reference to

16 any section of the Public Utilities Act that would

17 govern such a determination by this Commission?

18        A.   Not that I can see.

19        Q.   Does he indicate what showing Rock

20 Island would be required or would be expected to

21 make in such a proceeding?

22        A.   No.

23        Q.   Does he indicate what standard or

24 standards the Commission must, should, would or
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1 might apply to guide the Commission in making its

2 determination?

3        A.   I don't think so.

4        Q.   Does he indicate what time period, if

5 any, might apply within which an ICC decision would

6 need to be made?

7        A.   No.

8        Q.   Do you have a view of whether, taking

9 into account your knowledge of this project and all

10 the testimony and exhibits that have been submitted,

11 if Rock Island were to exercise that right that it's

12 suggesting it has, at the time it would come back to

13 this Commission in the future, whether it's Rock

14 Island or some successor, with such a request for

15 rate recovery, do you have a view whether the

16 project at that time would likely be in a healthy

17 financial condition, or instead in an unhealthy and

18 possibly distressed condition?

19             MS. CARDONI:  I'm going to object to

20 that question in that it's pure speculation for Mr.

21 Zuraski to opine on that.

22             JUDGE JONES:  Response?

23             MR. SHAY:  I, I guess, Your Honor, I

24 would ask that if the witness thinks he has a view
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1 on that, he can say so.  If he doesn't, if he feels

2 like it's too speculative, he can say that, as well.

3 I don't see that it's improper.

4             JUDGE JONES:  Well, I will allow the

5 question with this notation.  Sir, if you understand

6 the question and have a, have an opinion to share

7 with regard to it, please do so.

8             THE WITNESS:  Well, I can't think of a

9 reason why they would seek that unless they were not

10 making what they would consider an adequate rate of

11 return on their investment, or perhaps they were

12 losing money.  So I believe that's what you mean by

13 financial distress.  If it is, then I would agree

14 with that.

15        Q   (By Mr. Shay) Okay.  That's all I have,

16 Your Honor.

17             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Shay.  Mr.

18 MacBride, are you next under the schedule?

19             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes.

20                     EXAMINATION

21 QUESTIONS BY MR. MacBRIDE

22        Q.   Mr. Zuraski, just a couple of questions.

23 After you filed your direct testimony and presented

24 your analysis, Mr. Berry filed rebuttal in which he
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1 used your model or spreadsheet, your financial model

2 to present additional analyses using various other

3 assumptions that he believed more appropriate; do

4 you agree with that?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   And did you, in the course of carrying

7 out your responsibilities in this case, did you

8 review Rock Island's rebuttal and surrebuttal

9 testimony that was directed to other staff witnesses

10 in any detail?

11        A.   To other staff witnesses?  Very little

12 detail.

13        Q.   All right.  So would it be fair to say

14 you didn't really review Dr. Galli's rebuttal to

15 Mr. Rashid's testimony, direct testimony in which

16 Mr. Rashid requested an analysis of alternatives to

17 the HVEC transmission line?

18        A.   I don't recall if I, if I reviewed that

19 or not.

20        Q.   Thanks.  That's all the questions I

21 have.

22             JUDGE JONES:  All right, thank you.

23 Mr. Davis, do you still have questions for this

24 witness?
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1             MR. DAVIS:  I do, Your Honor.

2                     EXAMINATION

3 QUESTIONS BY MR. DAVIS

4        Q.   Mr. Zuraski, my name is Chuck Davis, I'm

5 an attorney for the Illinois Farm Bureau, I just

6 have a few questions here.

7             Isn't it true that the physical delivery

8 of electricity is not required to meet the Illinois

9 RPS standard?

10        A.   Yes.  Can I explain what that means?

11 Physical delivery?

12        Q.   Sure.

13        A.   I believe that the electricity has to be

14 delivered somewhere.  It doesn't have to necessarily

15 in some way, shape or form have to be delivered to

16 Illinois, or to be generated in Illinois, but I

17 don't, I don't see, you know, if you just pound the

18 electricity into the ground, I don't think that's

19 consistent with your -- the State's Renewed

20 Portfolio Standard.

21        Q.   So to that point, RPS credits could be

22 purchased to achieve this goal, is that correct?

23        A.   Absolutely.

24        Q.   Under those assumptions and statements
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1 you just made then, the project at issue here is not

2 required in order to meet the Illinois RPS standard,

3 is that correct?

4        A.   No, it's not required.

5        Q.   Is it correct that it's your testimony

6 that the electricity market in Illinois is

7 sufficiently competitive?

8        A.   Either -- yeah, the Illinois electricity

9 market?

10        Q.   Yes.

11        A.   So I -- the whole scenario of the retail

12 level I guess you mean.

13        Q.   Yes.

14        A.   I, I would say that it either is

15 competitive, or that there are controls in place

16 that at least help it to simulate competitive market

17 outcomes.

18        Q.   It's not your testimony that the project

19 is required in order to make the market competitive,

20 is it?

21        A.   No.  It is not -- that is not my

22 testimony.

23        Q.   Looking at your testimony and the

24 conclusions you drew, isn't it arguably true that if
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1 Eminent Domain is exercised by Rock Island Clean

2 Line in this case, then some farmers will experience

3 a decrease in wealth?

4        A.   A decrease in wealth?

5        Q.   Yes.

6        A.   That's a possibility.  Is that all you

7 said?  Yeah, it's a possibility.

8        Q.   I'd ask you to look at your direct

9 testimony, Lines 301 to 303.

10        A.   Yes.

11        Q.   So I guess in your answer, does that

12 accurately -- is there anything you need expand upon

13 with what is in Lines 301 to 303, or is it your

14 testimony that that is possible if Eminent Domain is

15 exercised?

16        A.   Right, that's what I said in the answer.

17        Q.   Okay, thank you.  And isn't it true that

18 the Rock Island Clean Line witnesses have only

19 presented evidence in support of the benefits of the

20 project, and not the project's expected cost?

21        A.   I believe that's true of the direct

22 testimony, but not the rebuttal testimony.

23        Q.   Okay, I have nothing further, thank you.

24             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Davis.
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1 Does Staff have redirect?

2             MS. CARDONI:  Could we take a

3 five-minute break, Your Honor?

4             JUDGE JONES:  We hereby break for five

5 minutes.

6             MS. CARDONI:  Thank you.

7                       (Recess)

8             JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Does

9 Staff have any redirect?

10             MS. CARDONI:  We have none, Your Honor.

11             JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you,

12 sir.

13             Is there another Staff witness to be

14 called to the stand?

15             MS. ERICSON:  Yes, Your Honor, the Staff

16 calls Yassir Rashid.

17             JUDGE JONES:  Sir, please raise your

18 right hand to be sworn.

19                    YASSIR RASHID,

20 of lawful age, having been first duly sworn to

21 testify the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but

22 the truth in the case aforesaid, deposes and says in

23 reply to oral interrogatories propounded as follows,

24 to-wit:
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1             MS. ERICSON:  May I proceed?

2             JUDGE JONES:  Yes, you may.

3             MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, this is

4 Christine Ericson, Counsel for Commission Staff.

5                     EXAMINATION

6 QUESTIONS BY MS. ERICSON

7        Q.   Good afternoon Mr. Rashid.

8        A.   Good afternoon.

9        Q.   Please state your full name for the

10 record and spell your last name?

11        A.   My name is Yassir Rashid, Y-A-S-S-I-R,

12 R-A-S-H-I-D.

13        Q.   Who is your employer, and what is your

14 business address?

15        A.   The Illinois Commerce Commission, my

16 address is 162 North LaSalle, Suite 7, Chicago,

17 Illinois.

18        Q.   And what is your position at the

19 Illinois Commerce Commission?

20             JUDGE JONES:  We're having a pretty hard

21 time hearing.

22        Q   (By Ms. Ericson) Do you want to repeat

23 your position at the Illinois Commerce Commission?

24             THE WITNESS:  I am an electrical
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1 engineer.

2        Q.   Did you prepare written exhibits for

3 submittal in this proceeding?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   Do you have before you a document which

6 has been marked for identification as ICC Staff

7 Exhibit 1.0, which consists of a Cover Page and 15

8 pages of narrative testimony, and is titled Direct

9 Testimony of Yassir Rashid, Energy Engineering

10 Program, Safety and Reliability Division, Illinois

11 Commerce Commission, filed on eDocket on June 25th,

12 2013?

13        A.   Yes.

14        Q.   Did you prepare that document for

15 presentation in this matter?

16        A.   Yes, I did.

17        Q.   Do you have before you a document which

18 has been marked for identification as ICC Staff

19 Exhibit 7.0, which consists of a cover page and

20 eight pages of narrative revised Rebuttal Testimony,

21 and is titled Rebuttal Testimony of Yassir Rashid,

22 Energy Engineering Program, Safety and Reliability

23 Division, Illinois Commerce Commission, filed

24 November 26, 2013?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   And did you prepare that document for

3 presentation in this matter?

4        A.   Yes, I did.

5        Q.   Do you have any corrections to make to

6 ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0 or 7.0?

7        A.   No.

8        Q.   Is the information contained in ICC

9 Staff Exhibit 1.0 and 7.0 true and correct, to the

10 best of your knowledge?

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   If I were to ask the same questions as

13 set forth in ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0 and 7.0 today,

14 would your responses be the same?

15        A.   Yes.

16        Q.   Your Honor, I move for admission into

17 evidence ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0 and ICC Staff Exhibit

18 7.0.

19             JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Ericson, what is the,

20 what is the name of 7.0?  What's it called?

21             MS. ERICSON:  It's the Rebuttal

22 Testimony.  Rebuttal testimony of Yassir Rashid.

23             JUDGE JONES:  Is that revised, or no?

24             MS. ERICSON:  It is revised.
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1             MR. MacBRIDE:  Judge, Staff had refiled

2 that with a new exhibit number, maybe that's the

3 source of your confusion.

4             MS. ERICSON:  Yes, we apologize for any

5 confusion.  It was originally filed on October 15th,

6 there was a revised version filed on November 5th,

7 and the Exhibit 7 as revised was filed November

8 26th.

9             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  And you're

10 offering those into the record, evidentiary record,

11 is that correct?

12             MS. ERICSON:  Yes, Your Honor.

13             JUDGE JONES:  Any response?

14                   (No response.)

15             JUDGE JONES:  All right, let the record

16 show there is not.  Those items sponsored by the

17 witness are hereby admitted into the evidentiary

18 record.  That would include ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0

19 filed June 25, 2013; it would also include the

20 witness's Revised Rebuttal Testimony filed on

21 eDocket on November 26, 2013, and at that time was

22 renumbered to become ICC Staff Exhibit 7.0.

23               (ICC Staff Exhibits 1.0 and 7.0

24                were admitted into evidence
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1                at this time.)

2             MS. ERICSON:  Thank you, Your Honor.

3 Mr. Rashid is available for cross examination.

4             JUDGE JONES:  Okay, thank you.

5             MR. MacBRIDE:  Judge, can we go off the

6 record a second?

7             JUDGE JONES:  Off the record.

8             (Discussion off the record.)

9             JUDGE JONES:  All right, back on the

10 record.  There was a brief off the record discussion

11 regarding the exhibit numbers and filing dates,

12 nothing further to state about those at this time,

13 so I think we were ready for cross examination of

14 this witness.  I believe there are several parties

15 whose counsel will be conducting some of that.

16 Let's see.

17             Counsel for Com-Ed, were you intending

18 to go first?

19             MR. RIPPIE:  I think I have so small

20 number of questions on this witness that I, somebody

21 else has volunteered to go ahead of me.

22             MR. PHILLIPS:  Your Honor, Illinois

23 Landowners Alliance will be happy to go first.

24             JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Please
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1 proceed.

2                     EXAMINATION

3 QUESTIONS BY MR. PHILLIPS

4        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Rashid, my name is

5 Jonathan Phillips, and I'm an attorney for the

6 Illinois Landowners Alliance.  As I'm sure you know,

7 if I ask you a question you don't understand or you

8 need me to rephrase, just let me know.

9             Can we agree that when I say the word

10 "line" or "project," we're discussing the Rock

11 Island Clean Line?

12        A.   Yes.

13        Q.   Okay.  I hope to move pretty quick and,

14 with easy questions, so hopefully we can get done

15 pretty quickly.

16             Mr. Rashid, your degrees are in

17 electrical engineering, computer engineering, and

18 business administration, correct?

19        A.   Yes.

20        Q.   Is it true that neither you nor any

21 other ICC staff member consulted with Illinois

22 Department of Natural Resources concerning the

23 proposed line?

24        A.   That's correct.  Mr. Rashid, you state
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1 in your testimony, if you wish to refer to it, it

2 would be your direct testimony Lines 68 through 70,

3 that you have no objection to the proposed route --

4 proposed routing of the line, isn't that correct?

5        A.   That's correct.

6        Q.   And you -- did you do any of your own

7 investigation into the routing of the line, or

8 simply rely on what was provided to you by Rock

9 Island?

10        A.   I relied on the routing study that was

11 provided by Rock Island.

12        Q.   In your testimony, again in your direct

13 testimony, it would be Lines 270 to 297, in that

14 area, you go in and explain how Mr. Detweiler

15 explained the criteria for the routing study, his

16 definitions of sensitivities and opportunities, and

17 the technical guidelines for the routing study,

18 correct?

19        A.   Could you repeat the lines?

20        Q.   Yes, no problem.  In particular it would

21 be your direct testimony, Lines 279 through 280, and

22 282 through 297.

23        A.   Yes.

24        Q.   And I just want to make sure that you
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1 were relying upon Mr. Detweiler's explanation of the

2 criteria for the routing study, his definitions of

3 sensitivities and opportunities, and the technical

4 guidelines for the routing study.

5        A.   That's correct.

6        Q.   Okay.  And not no belabor the point much

7 further, but you, could you please confirm that you

8 did not investigate the routing of the line around,

9 along Interstate 80 or the Rock Island Railroad?

10        A.   I did not conduct any investigation.  I

11 relied on the information provided by Rock Island.

12        Q.   Okay, thank you.  Mr. Rashid, are you

13 familiar with Section 8-406 of the Public Utilities

14 Act?

15        A.   What is the section number again?

16        Q.   8-406?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   Is it your understanding that under that

19 section, Rock Island must demonstrate that the

20 utility is capable of efficiently managing and

21 supervising construction process, and has taken

22 sufficient action to it ensure adequate and

23 efficient construction and supervision?

24        A.   Yes.
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1        Q.   Do you believe Rock Island to be a

2 utility today?

3        A.   I don't believe so.  Rock Island in this

4 proceeding has applied for a public utilities

5 status.

6        Q.   Okay, thank you.  Are you familiar with

7 the testimony of Michael Skelly?  In particular, his

8 surrebuttal testimony?

9        A.   Yes.

10        Q.   Do you recall that in that testimony,

11 Mr. Skelly states that essentially Clean Line and

12 Rock Island have a plan in place to establish an

13 effective construction management organization?

14        A.   That's what he testified.

15        Q.   Yes.  That would be on his Exhibit 1.7,

16 Lines 38 to 39, correct?

17        A.   Yes.

18        Q.   Okay.  Based upon the mere plan, not the

19 actual, the lacking of a construction management

20 organization in place, would you agree that Rock

21 Island has not demonstrated that it is capable of

22 efficiently managing and supervising the

23 construction process?

24        A.   My position is Rock Island has never
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1 done this kind of project before, and I don't

2 believe that they demonstrated enough to convince me

3 that they would be capable of managing as provided

4 the construction of the line.

5        Q.   Okay.  Thank you very much, I have no

6 more questions for you.

7             JUDGE JONES:  I think we have two, two

8 other parties whose counsel will be, or maybe doing

9 the cross examination.  Who's next?

10                     EXAMINATION

11 QUESTIONS BY MR. RIPPIE

12        Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Rashid, my name is

13 Glenn Rippie, I'm counsel for Commonwealth Edison,

14 and I have just a few questions for you this

15 afternoon.

16        A.   Good afternoon.

17        Q.   If you could please turn to your direct

18 testimony, and we'll begin at Page 2, Lines 40 -- 41

19 to 45.  And there you state that:  "In Grundy County

20 RICL will install a converter station to convert

21 direct current electricity into alternating current

22 electricity, as well as a single circuit 345 kV and

23 a double circuit 345 kV AC transmission lines from

24 the converter station to Commonwealth Edison
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1 Company's Collins Substation."

2             Did I read that testimony correctly?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   And then on Lines 48 through 49, you

5 state that:  "RICL will also install a 345 to 765 kV

6 step-up transformer facility to interconnect with

7 Collins Substation."

8             Did I read that correctly?

9        A.   Yes, you did.

10        Q.   Are those two portions of your testimony

11 taken together in sum a fair description of your

12 understanding of how the proposed DC transmission

13 line would be interconnected with the PJM

14 transmission grid in the Com-Ed zone?

15        A.   Based on the information that's included

16 in Rock Island testimony, the line is going to

17 extend from the converter station so that you would

18 have two, two routes.  One of them would have a

19 double circuit 345 kV line, and one would have a

20 single circuit 3 kV -- 344 kV line, and they will

21 both either -- they will both come for

22 transformations, step up transformer, either inside

23 the Collins Substation or in addition location to

24 Collins Substation.
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1        Q.   Fair enough.  And is that also, as you

2 understand it, what's recited in paragraph -- do you

3 have the petition in front of you?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   Is that also, as you understand it, what

6 is explained in paragraph 58 of the Petition?  In

7 particular, the portion that begins:  The project --

8        A.   I've got it.

9        Q.   -- will proceed easterly to a point of

10 interconnection.  And so on.

11        A.   Yes.

12        Q.   Am I correct that without this

13 interconnection, that is without a means of

14 transmitting electricity from the converter station

15 to the AC transmission system in the Com-Ed zone,

16 this project has no purpose whatsoever?

17        A.   If the project is to be connected to PJM

18 according to Rock Island plan, there, there must be

19 a way to physically connect the converter substation

20 to the Collins Substation.  And if I understood your

21 question correctly, without this interconnection,

22 the energy that Rock Island is trying to bring from

23 the resource area to the PJM or Chicago area, is not

24 going to be, is not going to be transferred to this



707

1 area.

2        Q.   I only have one more short set of

3 questions.

4             As an electrical engineer, Mr. Rashid,

5 if you were going to design an alternative to the

6 Rock Island Project, would you attempt to do that by

7 designing a system that used a different form or

8 type of line that achieved the same or equivalent

9 results?

10        A.   This question cannot be, I cannot answer

11 this question, because I do not have all the

12 information in front of me, but generally speaking,

13 for purposes of transmitting high volume of energy

14 for long distances, DC line has proven to be the

15 best way.  And that, it had its pros and cons, but

16 if you would just want to transmit bulk of electric

17 energy from one place over a long distance to a

18 second point, DC technology is the best technology.

19        Q.   Let me try asking the question again.

20 I'm not asking you to assume that the goal of the

21 project is to move energy from Point A to Point B.

22 Let's assume that the, instead, that the goal of the

23 project is to deliver a certain amount of energy

24 into, or a certain amount of wind energy into a load
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1 zone with certain characteristics and prices, and

2 the like.

3             If you were going to attempt to develop

4 an alternative to that to examine it, wouldn't you

5 want to use something other than the same kind of

6 line and the same route?

7        A.   For purpose of examination, yeah.

8 Company is going to try different, different ways,

9 and then assess which way is better.

10        Q.   And would you also perhaps want to try

11 putting the generation in a different location?

12        A.   My answer to the question, my previous

13 answer was based on the assumption that the

14 production is still in the resource area.  So are

15 you asking about just any, any location?

16        Q.   No, the resource area is substantially

17 larger than the, a 40 or 50-mile radius drawn around

18 the western terminal this line, isn't it?  The

19 resource area is in four or five states.

20        A.   That's correct.

21        Q.   Okay.  So would you also be interested

22 in an alternative that looked at other western

23 terminals?

24        A.   I don't understand the question.
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1        Q.   Would another type of alternative to

2 this project be a project that used a different

3 western termination within the resource area?

4        A.   So a within the resource area, Rock

5 Island's proposal is to bring the, the energy that

6 is produced by the wind farms to the western

7 substation, and then transmit that all together to

8 the east.

9        Q.   Right.  So my question is would another

10 alternative, class of alternative designs have the

11 western substation in a different location?

12        A.   I don't understand the question.  Are

13 you interested in moving the western substation from

14 its current proposed location in Burlington County,

15 Iowa?

16        Q.   No, I think you're, you're reading too

17 much into my question.  My question is very simple.

18 If you were going to construct a set of

19 alternatives, one alternative we discussed is a

20 different kind of line.  Would another possible

21 class of alternatives be looking for a different

22 terminal point for the western substation?

23             MS. ERICSON:  Counsel, you're asking for

24 alternative routes that Rock Island should have
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1 looked at, or is that the frame of the question?

2             MR. RIPPIE:  You're -- no, it's -- no.

3 That was a very simple question.  I'll try it one

4 other way.

5        Q   (By Mr. Rippie) The proposal that Rock

6 Island made starts at a given point at a western

7 terminal, right?  And it proceeds roughly 500 miles

8 to an eastern converter station, and then gets

9 trans-- I won't use the word transformed -- gets

10 converted into AC power, and over a shorter distance

11 gets moved to the Collins Substation or a point

12 adjacent to the Collins Substation.

13             That's the -- that's the design in

14 essence, right?

15        A.   Right.

16        Q.   Okay.  One alternative set of designs

17 would be to explore beefing up the AC system, or

18 putting in an AC line.  Would, would another be to

19 look at a different point in the resource area to

20 bring the DC line from?

21        A.   Yeah, that's possible.

22        Q.   Okay.  That was my question.  Thank you.

23 That's all I have.

24        A.   All right.
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1             JUDGE JONES:  It appears there are two

2 more parties that have cross questions, I think my

3 count was a little off a few minutes ago, but who,

4 who wishes to go next?

5             MR. MacBRIDE:  We have no questions.

6             JUDGE JONES:  Pardon?

7             MR. MacBRIDE:  We have no questions.

8             JUDGE JONES:  All right.  So Mr. Davis?

9                     EXAMINATION

10 QUESTIONS BY MR. DAVIS

11        Q.   Thank you.  Mr. Rashid, my name is Chuck

12 Davis, I'm one of the attorneys for the Illinois

13 Farm Bureau.  Not too many questions here today.

14             My, am I correct that this is the first

15 DC transmission line being proposed in Illinois?  Is

16 that correct?

17        A.   That's my understanding.  Is my

18 understanding from your testimony regarding the open

19 access to the line being a DC line that your

20 position is is not that it's impossible, but that

21 it's not necessarily practical because of the cost

22 and effort involved with conversion, is that

23 correct?

24        A.   That's correct.
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1        Q.   Now is it also your testimony that DC

2 lines are rare, not only in Illinois, but in the

3 country, in the United States altogether?

4        A.   That's correct.

5        Q.   Isn't it correct that it's your

6 testimony that this line being proposed is not

7 necessary for the reliability of our electric of --

8 of our electric system in Illinois?

9        A.   I would advise that Rock Island has not

10 demonstrated that the line is necessary to maintain

11 reliability.

12        Q.   Now it's, it's correct that you

13 testified that Rock Island needs to acquire land to

14 construct the eastern converter station, correct?

15        A.   Could you refer me to where I did -- I

16 said that?

17        Q.   I guess I could find it, I could also

18 just jump to the next question.

19             For the west -- for the eastern

20 converter station, do you know if Rock Island has

21 acquired real property for that, that station?

22        A.   I do not.

23        Q.   In your testimony you stated that when

24 filed at the time that, to your knowledge, Rock
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1 Island Clean Line or its parent, Clean Line Energy

2 Partners, has never managed or built a transmission

3 line.  Is that still your understanding today?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   In your experience at the Commission, is

6 that uncommon to have an applicant that has never

7 managed or built a transmission line before?

8        A.   In all the cases that I was involved in,

9 none of them has an applicant who has never done a

10 transmission line project.

11        Q.   Isn't it correct that Rock Island has

12 not provided independent studies from PJM or MISO

13 demonstrating the need for the project?

14        A.   That is correct.

15        Q.   Thank you, Mr. Rashid, I have nothing

16 further.

17             JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Ericson, is there any

18 redirect?

19             MS. ERICSON:  May we have five minutes

20 to consult, Your Honor?

21             JUDGE JONES:  Yes.

22                       (Recess)

23             MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, we're back if

24 you're ready.
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1             JUDGE JONES:  Let me check.  I think

2 we're good.  We're back on the record.  Ms. Ericson?

3             MS. ERICSON:  No redirect, Your Honor.

4             JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  That concludes

5 the questioning of the witness.  Thank you, sir.

6             THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

7             JUDGE JONES:  Off the record.

8             (Discussion off the record.)

9             JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Let

10 the record show there have been off the record

11 discussions for purposes indicated.  One of the

12 things that was discussed was offering of some of

13 the cross testimony and exhibits into the record at

14 this time.  And on a related item, an exhibit that

15 is being put into the record for a witness for whom

16 was originally cross, but now he will not be, so Mr.

17 MacBride, are you ready to proceed with that?

18             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes, sir.  Judge, Rock

19 Island had two witnesses who have filed prepared

20 testimony in this case for which no party had

21 indicated a desire to cross those witnesses, so I'd

22 like to move, identify and move the admission of

23 those two witnesses's exhibits at this time, if I

24 may.
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1             JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

2             MR. MacBRIDE:  The first of those

3 witnesses is Mr. Gary Moland, M-O-L-A-N-D, I will

4 identify his exhibits.  Mr. Moland has submitted

5 Direct Testimony of Gary Moland, Rock Island Exhibit

6 3.0, filed on eDocket on October 10th, 2012.  Also

7 exhibits to that testimony, Exhibits 3.1, 3.2, 3.3

8 and 3.4, those were all filed on eDocket also on

9 October 10th, 2012.  Mr. Moland filed Rebuttal

10 Testimony of Gary Moland identified as Rock Island

11 Exhibit 3.5, that was filed on eDocket on August

12 20th, 2013.  There was also an Exhibit 3.6 to that

13 testimony, also filed on eDocket on August 20th,

14 2013.

15             Further, Mr. Moland filed Surrebuttal

16 Testimony of Gary Moland identified as Rock Island

17 Exhibit 3.7 filed on eDocket on November 12th, 2013,

18 with an accompanying Exhibit 3.8 also filed on

19 eDocket on November 12th, 2013.  And finally, on

20 December 9th, 2013, an Affidavit of Gary Moland

21 identified as Rock Island Exhibit 3.9 and adopting

22 the previously identified exhibits was also filed on

23 eDocket served on the parties.

24             So we would offer Mr. Moland's Exhibits
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1 Rock Island Exhibit 3.0 through 3.9 into the

2 evidentiary record.

3             JUDGE JONES:  Are there any objections

4 or other responses to the admission of those items?

5                     (No response.)

6             JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show there

7 are not.  Those evidentiary items are hereby

8 admitted into the evidentiary record, I will not

9 read the dates, since they were just read into the

10 motion, but the Exhibit Numbers 3.0, 3.1, 3.2, 3.3,

11 3.4, 3.5, 3.6, 3.7, and 3.8.  They are all admitted

12 into the evidentiary record as they appear on

13 eDocket on the file dates that were identified in

14 the motion to admit them.

15               (Rock Island Exhibits 3.1 through 3.8

16                were admitted into evidence

17                at this time.)

18             Did you have any others to offer?

19             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes, Judge, the second

20 witness for Rock Island for whom there is no cross

21 is Mr. Leonard Januzik, J-A-N-U-Z-I-K.  Mr. Januzik

22 filed direct testimony of Leonard Januzik identified

23 as Rock Island Exhibit 6.0 filed on eDocket on

24 October 10th, 2012.  With that testimony were
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1 Exhibits 6.1, 6.2, 6.3 and 6.4 also filed on eDocket

2 on October 10th, 2012.  The two other exhibits to

3 Mr. Januzik's direct testimony were filed as

4 revised, those are Exhibits 6.5 revised and 6.6

5 revised.  Those two exhibits were filed on eDocket

6 on October 8th, 2013.

7             In addition, Mr. Januzik filed Rebuttal

8 Testimony of Leonard Januzik identified as Rock

9 Island Exhibit 6.7 Revised.  That exhibit was filed

10 on eDocket on October 8th, 2013.  And then on

11 December 9th, 2013, an Affidavit of Leonard Januzik

12 identified as Rock Island Exhibit 6.8 was, in

13 adopting Mr. Januzik's previously identified

14 testimony and exhibits was also filed on eDocket and

15 served on the parties.

16             So we would move Mr. Januzik's exhibits

17 that I've just identified into the record.

18             JUDGE JONES:  Are there any responses to

19 that motion?

20                      (No response.)

21             JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show there

22 are not.  Those evidentiary items just identified in

23 that motion are admitted into the evidentiary

24 record.  They are admitted on the file dates
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1 identified in the motion, I will not repeat so as

2 not to perhaps misstate those file dates.  More

3 specifically, the items admitted are 6.0, 6.1, 6.2,

4 6.3, 6.4, 6.5 Revised, 6.6 Revised, 6.7 Revised, and

5 6.8.

6               (Rock Island Exhibits 6.0-6.4, 6.5

7                Revised, 6.6 Revised, 6.7 Revised

8                and 6.8 were admitted into evidence

9                at this time.)

10             JUDGE JONES:  Did you have others?

11             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes, as I indicated at

12 the start of this hearing today, Rock Island and ILA

13 Counsel entered into a stipulation in lieu of cross

14 examination of ILA witness Mr. Rosengren, had filed

15 that stipulations on eDocket on December 9th, 2013,

16 identified as Rock Island Cross Exhibit Rosengren 1,

17 and would offer that into the record.

18             JUDGE JONES:  Okay, thank you.  Any

19 clarifications or other responses with respect to

20 that motion?

21                      (No response.)

22             JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show there

23 are not.  And that was identified as Rock Island

24 Cross Rosengren 1, is that right?
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1             MR. MacBRIDE:  Correct.

2             JUDGE JONES:  That was filed on December

3 9th?

4             MR. MacBRIDE:  Correct.

5             JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show that

6 Rock Island Cross Exhibit Rosengren 1 was filed on

7 eDocket on December 9th, 2013, is hereby admitted

8 into the evidentiary record.

9               (Rock Island Cross Exhibit Rosengren 1

10                was admitted into evidence

11                at this time.)

12             MR. MacBRIDE:  All right.  And one

13 additional item, Judge.  Rock Island entered into a

14 stipulation with Counsel for James and Sally Bedeker

15 and First Midwest Bank, Trustee, in lieu of the

16 cross examination of the testimony of Mr. James

17 Bedeker.  I filed that, or we have filed that

18 stipulation on eDocket identified as Rock Island

19 Cross Exhibit Bedeker 1, that's B-E-D-E-K-E-R.  That

20 was filed on eDocket today, December 11th, and we

21 would offer that exhibit into the record.

22             MR. RIPPIE:  Mr. MacBride.

23             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes.

24             MR. RIPPIE:  Can I just look at the
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1 caption?

2             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes.

3             JUDGE JONES:  Does anyone else need to

4 see that?

5             MR. RIPPIE:  No objection.

6             JUDGE JONES:  Do any of the parties have

7 any clarifications or objections or other responses

8 with respect to that motion?

9                   (No response.)

10             JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show they

11 do not.

12             Let the record show that Rock Island

13 Cross Exhibit Bedeker 1 filed on eDocket on December

14 11, 2013, is hereby admitted in -- hereby admitted

15 into the evidentiary record.

16               (Rock Island Cross Exhibit Bedeker 1

17                was admitted into evidence

18                at this time.)

19             Did Rock Island have any other -- others

20 like that to offer at this time?

21             MR. MacBRIDE:  No, I have one other

22 procedural matter to bring up, but that's all the

23 exhibits we have to offer at this time.

24             JUDGE JONES:  All right, let me
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1 doublecheck on that first.

2             Do other parties have any no cross items

3 they wanted to offer into the record at this time,

4 or do you want to do that at a later point?  It's

5 kind of up to you.

6             MR. PHILLIPS:  We'll be doing ours at a

7 later point, Your Honor.

8             MR. RIPPIE:  Sadly, I don't think we

9 have any.  Unless anyone wants to waive.

10             JUDGE JONES:  That's one way to put it.

11 All right.  Mr. MacBride?

12             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes, I note that Rock

13 Island and no party had cross examination for Larry

14 Gerdes, G-E-R-D-E-S, and Stephen Gerdes, also

15 G-E-R-D-E-S, and I believe either yesterday or today

16 their counsel filed a Motion to Admit their

17 exhibits.  I don't want to get into the substance of

18 this, because their counsel is not present, but I

19 had advised their counsel that I did have an

20 objection to one of their, one of the exhibits

21 attached to the testimony, so I don't believe their

22 counsel intends to appear at the hearings, based on

23 some previous discussion we had earlier in these

24 hearings, I would just suggest you set a date for me
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1 to file a written response stating my objections to

2 the particular exhibit.

3             JUDGE JONES:  And your objections have

4 been made known to them?  Are you saying that or...

5             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes, I have communicated,

6 and I'm not attributing anything negative to their

7 counsel, but I've communicated to him the basis of

8 my objection, offered a proposal that would resolve

9 it, and have not gotten a response.  I would say the

10 exhibits in question are Gerdes Party Exhibits 1.1,

11 1.2 and 1.3.

12             JUDGE JONES:  All right, well, I don't

13 think we'll do anything more about that one on

14 today's date.

15             During the off the record discussion

16 there was also some brief attention paid to the,

17 what the Rock Island Witness Adams sponsoring of

18 Witness Dover's direct testimony.  I believe that a

19 procedure for handling that has been agreed to, or

20 at least I think there's a procedure there that no

21 one objects to.

22             Mr. MacBride, do you want to indicate

23 what you plan to do there, whatever else you want to

24 say about it?
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1             MR. MacBRIDE:  Yes.  We plan to revise

2 Rock Island Exhibit 9.0, which was the prepared

3 testimony of Morris store.  By refiling it as Rock

4 Island Exhibit 9.0 revised.  The revisions will

5 consist of identifying on the cover page that it is

6 the testimony of Mr. Pierre Adam, not Morris Stover,

7 and in addition, on the first, I don't have it in

8 front of me, approximately page and a half, but

9 specifically the section of the original Exhibit

10 9.0, which describe Mr. Stover's present -- name,

11 address, present position, educational experience,

12 et cetera, we will show that, mark that physically

13 to show that that's deleted so that the exhibit will

14 consist only of the, shall I say substantive

15 testimony that follows after the introductory

16 material.

17             JUDGE JONES:  And that will be filed.

18             MR. MacBRIDE:  On eDocket, yes.

19             JUDGE JONES:  Do any of the other

20 parties have any clarifications with respect to what

21 Mr. MacBride is proposing?

22                   (No response.)

23             JUDGE JONES:  They do not, so that is

24 how that will be handled.  That will be handled in
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1 the manner just outlined by, by Mr. MacBride.  In

2 any event, Witness Adam is one of the witnesses to

3 be cross examined tomorrow, too, is that correct?

4             MR. MacBRIDE:  Correct.

5             JUDGE JONES:  Also discussed during the

6 off the record conversation was the start time for

7 tomorrow, which I believe is, is again 9:30.  Any

8 comments on that?

9                   (No response.)

10             JUDGE JONES:  Were there other parties,

11 we've heard from some, but perhaps there were others

12 with regard to any no cross testimony to be offered

13 into the record today.

14                   (No response.)

15             JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show no

16 response to any items that are not offered today

17 will be taken up at a later time.  Off the record.

18            (Discussion off the record.)

19             JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  In an

20 off the record discussion about the, the schedule, I

21 believe that no one else has anything to take up at

22 this time, so we will in a minute conclude today's

23 hearing.

24             So at this time is there anything,
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1 anything else to take up before we close?

2                   (No response.)

3             JUDGE JONES:  All right, there is not.

4 At this time let the record show that today's

5 hearing is concluded in accordance with the

6 scheduling in this matter.  This matter is continued

7 to and will resume at 9:30 a.m. on tomorrow,

8 December 12th.

9             Thank you all.  Have a good rest of the

10 day.

11                 (Whereupon, this matter was

12                  continued to December 12, 2013

13                  at 9:30 a.m.)
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